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          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm going to

          3  call the meeting to order. Thanks, everybody, for

          4  being here.

          5                 I've got this big opening statement

          6  here, let's see how I do, okay? I've got the glasses

          7  on. Terrific.

          8                 Good afternoon. I'm Council Member

          9  Jim Gennaro, Chair of the New York City Council

         10  Committee on Environmental Protection, and I would

         11  like to welcome you to this hearing.

         12                 Today the Committee on Environmental

         13  Protection will hear testimony on the New York State

         14  Department of Environmental Conservation Storm Water

         15  Permit Program for the East Hudson area for the New

         16  York City watershed and a related resolution,

         17  Resolution 652.

         18                 The consideration of Resolution

         19  Number 651, since the DEC issued its final phase 2

         20  stormwater permits last Wednesday, January of 2003.

         21  These permits were issued after this Committee had

         22  scheduled and prepared this hearing, and after the

         23  resolutions of the subject of this hearing were

         24  drafted and given out to invited witnesses.

         25                 I guess what all that means is that
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          2  we had two resolutions, one of which was calling for

          3  something which pretty much had already been done,

          4  so that's a good thing but we'll talk more about

          5  that as we go forward.

          6                 Specifically the DEC released its

          7  phase 2 general permit for stormwater discharges

          8  from construction activity, it's phase 2 permit for

          9  stormwater discharges from municipal separate

         10  stormwater sewer systems, known as MS4's, and it's

         11  MS4 designation criteria.

         12                 This is all getting pretty confusing,

         13  but when you look at the record after the fact, it

         14  will all make sense. We have good witnesses that

         15  will help us make sense of all this.

         16                 These designation criteria resulted

         17  in the designation of the entire East of Hudson

         18  Watershed as an MS4. That's a good thing. That's one

         19  of the things called for in Resolution 652.

         20                 This Committee plans to review the

         21  final construction activity permit and other

         22  material released by the DEC, as it pertains to

         23  stormwater permits.

         24                 New York City's drinking water supply

         25  enjoys the reputation of being one of the most
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          2  prestigious public supplies in the world.

          3                 Eight million New York City

          4  residents, one million suburbanites and countless

          5  visitors rely on this crucial natural resource that

          6  provides approximately 1.3 billion gallons of

          7  drinking water each day.

          8                 As most of you know, the City's water

          9  supply is primarily served by a system of 19

         10  reservoirs in a 2,000 square mile watershed, that

         11  goes through eight Upstate counties.

         12                 This larger watershed is comprised of

         13  two separate sections. East of Hudson, also known as

         14  the Croton watershed, and West of Hudson, also known

         15  as the Catskill Delaware watershed.

         16                 The protection of the City's drinking

         17  water from adverse sources is necessary in order to

         18  ensure a safe and healthy supply.

         19                 One such adverse source is

         20  stormwater. Stormwater is kind of the new

         21  battleground for watershed protection and we're

         22  taking it on with a vengeance.

         23                 Polluted runoff is the largest source

         24  of contaminants, endangering our drinking water.

         25  Stormwater runoff includes such pollutants as road
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          2  salt, heavy metals, gasoline, nutrients and

          3  antifreeze that get washed into the City's water

          4  supply.

          5                 However, unlike pollution from point

          6  sources, you know, such as pipes from big facilities

          7  and so on, and it's often hard to identify the

          8  sources and hard to control the pollutants found in

          9  stormwater.

         10                 Recognizing the threat that

         11  stormwater poses to water quality, in 1987, Congress

         12  amended the federal Clean Water Act to acquire the

         13  USEPA to set phase national pollutant discharge

         14  elimination system requirements for stormwater

         15  discharges.

         16                 Thereafter, the EPA mandated that the

         17  State control this alarming pollution source via a

         18  phased-in permitting scheme.

         19                 Today, as I previously stated, this

         20  Committee will specifically focus on a heightened

         21  stormwater permit program for the east of Hudson

         22  area of the New York City watershed and what such a

         23  program should include, and Resolution No. 652, as

         24  it pertains to that specific issue.

         25                 As Chairman of this Committee, I am
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          2  not convinced that the DEC Statewide stormwater

          3  permits that have been issued would effective

          4  preserve, protect and improve the City's water

          5  resource from pollutant stormwater runoff emanating

          6  from the heavily developed East of Hudson area, an

          7  area already burdened with somewhat diminished water

          8  quality.

          9                 Resolution 652 calls upon DEC to

         10  strengthen stormwater permit program for the east of

         11  Hudson area.

         12                 Simply put, stringent measures must

         13  be imposed to ensure that our water supply be

         14  protected by the greatest extent possible.

         15                 I will now call the first witness,

         16  but before I do that -- it's kind of a lengthy

         17  opening statement, kind of a record for me. Now,

         18  what does it all mean? Okay, we have stormwater

         19  certainly is the big issue and what we're looking at

         20  is the DEC, pursuant to federal guidelines how to

         21  set forth this stormwater permit, and on a statewide

         22  basis for construction activity which it released

         23  earlier, the draft version of it, which many folks,

         24  including DEP, myself and some of the advocates

         25  called for a stronger statewide permit for
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          2  construction, activities, DEC released that permit

          3  for the statewide activities the other day and we're

          4  going to hear about the extent to which DEC made

          5  that stronger than it was previously.

          6                 That's a good thing. I don't think we

          7  got everything we asked for but we got a lot and

          8  we're going to hear about that. So, that's certainly

          9  good news.

         10                 And then the other thing that we were

         11  calling for today in the other resolution is for the

         12  east of Hudson watershed, for that to have

         13  heightened stormwater controls, ones that will be a

         14  little stricter than would apply statewide because

         15  that is particularly stressed watershed.

         16                 So, we want to see that take place

         17  and we're going to focus a lot of the hearings on

         18  that.

         19                 And the other part of Resolution 652

         20  was for the entire East of Hudson Watershed, to get

         21  what's known as an MS4 designation, which I talked

         22  about earlier, which means that everywhere within

         23  that watershed there will have to be some sort of

         24  stormwater plan, which you usually only have to do

         25  when you're in like a certain municipality, but that
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          2  has been extended. That is that standard to the

          3  entire east of Hudson area. So, that's a good thing.

          4                 So, we come before you today having

          5  gotten, you know, we had planned to come here today

          6  to ask for a whole bunch of things, you know, a

          7  stronger statewide permit and MS4 designation for

          8  east of Hudson, both of pretty much we've already

          9  gotten, and we want that last piece, which is the

         10  heightened stormwater control for east of Hudson,

         11  and I would like to thank some of the people here

         12  today, even before we call our first witness, such

         13  as Mark Hopper, from the DEP, General Counsel, and

         14  Susan Amron from Corp Counsel, along with some of

         15  the advocates that we're going to hear from today

         16  for their good work and bringing to the table and

         17  getting done a lot of what we were going to come

         18  here and ask for today.

         19                 But we've still got a little further

         20  to go, particularly with the East of Hudson

         21  heightened stormwater controls, and so we're going

         22  to focus a lot of our efforts on that. And I thank

         23  you all very much.

         24                 We're going to call the first

         25  witness, but before I do that I want to recognize
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          2  Council Member Vallone, who is a member of the

          3  Committee who is here, Council Member Serrano who is

          4  here, and the good work of my own Committee staff,

          5  Donna DeCostanzo, and Richard Colon, who did a lot

          6  of the heavy lifting to get this hearing on the

          7  road. I thank you all for your efforts.

          8                 Oh, and Council Member Koppell,

          9  sitting to my right. Council Member DeBlasio is here

         10  also. Okay, Bill. I'm just so rapped up in my own

         11  rhetoric, you know how I get.

         12                 So, how about we get me off and get

         13  people here who are really going to bring some value

         14  added to this hearing. I thank you all, and I'm

         15  going to call the first witness from the AG's

         16  office, Jim Tierney, the Inspector General from the

         17  State AG's Office.

         18                 Thank you for being with is.

         19                 INSPECTOR GENERAL TIERNEY: Good

         20  afternoon.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Like we do with

         22  all of our witnesses, we have this little oath

         23  ritual which we'll put you through.

         24                 Donna DeCostanzo will administer the

         25  oath and we'll proceed.
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          2                 So, after she does that, if you can

          3  just state your name, and proceed with your

          4  testimony.

          5                 Thanks very much.

          6                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Just raise your right

          7  hand.

          8                 In the testimony that you're about to

          9  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         10  whole truth or nothing but the truth?

         11                 INSPECTOR GENERAL TIERNEY: I do.

         12                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         13                 INSPECTOR GENERAL TIERNEY: Chairman

         14  Gennaro, members of the City Council, I'm really

         15  glad for this opportunity to speak today on a very

         16  important issue. I'd also like to recognize the good

         17  work of Donna DeCostanzo, and Richard Colon. I've

         18  been working with them on this issue over the course

         19  of the past month or so and have really enjoyed it.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. And Jim, if

         21  I could just cut you off for a second, I was

         22  recognizing the work of the good people in

         23  government who have gotten us a lot of what we were

         24  going to come here and ask for today, and I failed

         25  to recognize your good efforts, and I'm sorry about
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          2  that, but I'll make up for it now by recognizing a

          3  lot of what you've done and you've called out to the

          4  DEC to make these things stronger, and they're

          5  stronger. Thanks to your efforts, as well as anyone

          6  else. So, sorry about that.

          7                 Sorry, for the interruption, but

          8  please proceed.

          9                 INSPECTOR GENERAL TIERNEY: I've

         10  submitted fairly detailed comments to the staff

         11  today, which will serve as my testimony before the

         12  Committee, so I can keep my comments brief, but I

         13  would like to first say that the Attorney General's

         14  Office strongly endorses the resolutions that have

         15  been proposed by this Committee.

         16                 The resolutions were very well done

         17  and state very effectively the many reasons why we

         18  need to address polluted runoff in the New York City

         19  watershed, and in many cases throughout the state.

         20  Polluted runoff is the largest source of water

         21  pollution in our water bodies today. EPA generally

         22  recognizes that nationwide it's the source of about

         23  75 percent of the pollution that gets into our water

         24  bodies.

         25                 If we are going to fulfill the hope
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          2  of the Clean Water Act, we have to address polluted

          3  runoff, the stuff that runs off of City streets,

          4  roadways and the like.

          5                 And this gets us down to this

          6  tremendous opportunity that is presented by, what is

          7  known as the phase 2 stormwater general permit.

          8  Really it's best to think about them as just

          9  stormwater regulations.

         10                 It's also good to think conceptually

         11  about construction activity permits as being an

         12  effort to control what's going to be done, new

         13  development, and as the MS4 permits, as what you can

         14  do about the mess that may already be there in

         15  certain areas.

         16                 And just to identify what the

         17  Chairman has already recognized in his comments, is

         18  that the original draft of the DEC permits that were

         19  put out earlier this year, contained in my view a

         20  number of serious significant problems.

         21                 But since that time, DEC has listened

         22  to the work of many of the people in this room and

         23  has made substantial improvements.

         24                 And those drafts are out there,

         25  they're on the public record, they've been
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          2  substantially revised, in my opinion, and

          3  substantially strengthened, but these are permits of

          4  statewide impact.

          5                 But also the good news is that the

          6  entire east of Hudson watershed has been recognized

          7  as being with an MS4 area. Now, that means that that

          8  entire East of Hudson Watershed in Putnam, in

          9  Westchester, in Dutchess, will have the additional

         10  MS4 controls on the impervious surfaces, the

         11  pavement and the parking lots that already are

         12  there.

         13                 And DEC has further said to me,

         14  informed me, that they are going to undertake in a

         15  cooperative effort with DEP, with the environmental

         16  community, with local governments and with local

         17  businesses in the East of Hudson, an effort to

         18  review heightened stormwater permits, both with

         19  respect to existing development and new development.

         20                 And this is highly important because

         21  watersheds simply will die a death of a thousand

         22  cuts due to further development.

         23                 I guess the shorthand of it is that

         24  sprawl ruins water quality. Sprawl ruins water

         25  quality is something that's recognized in the peer
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          2  review academic literature.

          3                 What I wanted to do is get into a few

          4  specific recommendations as we move forward.

          5                 My written comments contain detailed

          6  language, literally a rewritten general permit for

          7  construction activity proposed for the East of

          8  Hudson area.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, Jim, if I

         10  can just paraphrase, or if I could just get a sense

         11  of where you're going here, you're going to make

         12  specific recommendations on what the heightened

         13  stormwater standards should be within East of

         14  Hudson?

         15                 INSPECTOR GENERAL TIERNEY: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         17                 INSPECTOR GENERAL TIERNEY: And this

         18  has been done after consultation with every national

         19  expert I could get my hands on. Also, Dr. Charles

         20  Silver of our office has worked very hard on this.

         21                 And it's a mixture of law and

         22  science, as always, what's our authority, and then

         23  what can we do to get there to solve the problem.

         24                 The first has to do with natural

         25  resource protection.
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          2                 The federal Clean Water Act and the

          3  regulations issued underneath that, gives State DEC

          4  the ability to protect natural resources as part of

          5  its control on polluted runoff.

          6                 What does this mean? You can protect

          7  the wetlands of almost any size. You can protect

          8  streams, you can keep development off of steep

          9  slopes and you can keep development out of buffer

         10  areas.

         11                 And this is critically important,

         12  something recognized by everybody, and it's

         13  increasingly important now that the federal

         14  government seems to be withdrawing from efforts to

         15  protect wetlands.

         16                 You may have heard about the Bush

         17  Administration's decision recently to withdraw its

         18  controls and regulation over isolated wetlands.

         19                 There's more to come there. They're

         20  now talking about removing controls over isolated

         21  streams, small streams, intermittent streams, and

         22  streams that are not used in navigable waters within

         23  interstate commerce.

         24                 So, something will have to fill that

         25  gap. These stormwater regulations could do that.
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          2                 Also, steep slopes, a lot of the

          3  areas of the East of Hudson have very steep

          4  landscapes.

          5                 You could design the phase 2 storm

          6  water regulations, so you stay off slopes greater

          7  than 20 percent.

          8                 This would help keep a lot of messes

          9  from happening. I've been to dozens and dozens of

         10  construction sites. When you get onto the steeper

         11  slopes, floods of mud run off those slopes and down

         12  in the streams. I've seen some beauties, and in

         13  sometimes very small sites, but literally tons and

         14  tons of sediment can come off in a single storm.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We have some

         16  pictures that are going to be shown by the

         17  Riverkeeper people of what can happen, from just,

         18  you know, one construction site. I thought that 15

         19  percent was more the standard that we should be

         20  cautious on rather than 20?

         21                 INSPECTOR GENERAL TIERNEY: Well, 15

         22  is excellent for the septic systems.

         23                 I would take 15, but I hope that 20

         24  percent is at least something that would work with

         25  State DEC.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          3                 INSPECTOR GENERAL TIERNEY:

          4  Particularly in the East Hudson watershed, where the

          5  average price of a home is getting well above

          6  $400,000, in Westchester above $500,000. People are

          7  seeking to build anywhere and everywhere, and

          8  they're pressing into sites that previously are

          9  considered non-developable.

         10                 The next major suggestion beyond

         11  natural resource protections is what is your

         12  pollutant control criteria.

         13                 If you tell an engineer, remove,

         14  design the pollution controls, the catchbasins, the

         15  other stormwater treatment devices, design it to

         16  treat 90 percent of the increase of total suspended

         17  sediments, remove 75 percent of the total

         18  phosphorus. They can do that.

         19                 This technology, readily available,

         20  implemented all the time, that can do that today. In

         21  fact, DEP requires it frequently in

         22  phosphorus-restricted basins, particularly with

         23  respect to phosphorus.

         24                 In checking in with the national

         25  groups, and the National Expert Center for Watershed
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          2  Protection and the like, other technical experts in

          3  this field, we think that a design criteria for the

          4  water coming off of the site, that it should not

          5  leave that site until 90 percent of the total

          6  suspended sediments are removed from that water, and

          7  75 percent are the total phosphorus, and that that

          8  would work in well with the natural resource

          9  protections, and that's doable and achievable.

         10                 Set that number and the engine years

         11  can design to achieve that number, it's realistic

         12  and doable.

         13                 The third major suggestion that I

         14  would recommend is treating a sufficient volume of

         15  stormwater.

         16                 Right now the statewide standard uses

         17  something, a conflicts formula known as the 90

         18  percent rule.

         19                 You'll hear terms called the

         20  "one-year 24-hour storm," the "two-year 24-hour

         21  storm." Let's put real numbers on that. The 90

         22  percent rule would be about a 1.3-inch rainstorm, in

         23  Westchester and Putnam County, the East of Hudson

         24  Watershed.

         25                 A one-year 24-hour storm would be
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          2  about 2.7 inches, and a two-year 24-hour storm would

          3  be about 3.5-inch rainfall.

          4                 What we recommend in the East of

          5  Hudson area is that there be a water quality

          6  treatment volume, that you actually treat a water

          7  quality volume for the two-year 24-hour storm. You

          8  actually hold and treat a sufficient volume of the

          9  water. If you don't, the excess water during a storm

         10  simply goes off untreated. If the basin isn't

         11  designed with sufficient size.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: This would be

         13  for construction activities?

         14                 INSPECTOR GENERAL TIERNEY: The both

         15  construction activity and post-construction

         16  activity.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I see.

         18                 INSPECTOR GENERAL TIERNEY: So, the

         19  box small parking lot, you have to contain and hold

         20  that. That has an additional benefit beyond

         21  pollutant removals, it also gets people to

         22  infiltrate the water, and keeps a large storm search

         23  from happening on impervious surfaces that will blow

         24  apart a stream.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes. Please
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          2  continue.

          3                 INSPECTOR GENERAL TIERNEY: The fourth

          4  main recommendation would be to develop a design

          5  manual. And I think some of this work is already

          6  being investigated. But develop in a design manual

          7  as part of the state technical standards, specific

          8  to deal with the very significant problems with

          9  phosphorus in the East of Hudson Watershed.

         10                 As you know, Chairman Gennaro, many

         11  of the reservoirs well exceed the phosphorus

         12  budgets. Their green with algae in the summer. It

         13  sets off a chain reaction a bad impacts on drinking

         14  water quality.

         15                 Green skunk water, water with perhaps

         16  higher level of disinfection byproducts, waters that

         17  are deoxygenated and the like.

         18                 The problem in the East of Hudson,

         19  with polluted runoff, the most important problem is

         20  phosphorus. There are specific types of treatment

         21  mechanisms that are appropriate for treating

         22  phosphorus and helping remove that from the water.

         23                 We need to do a better job of

         24  identifying those developing design criteria, and

         25  attacking the problem. That's something that could
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          2  readily be done by DEC and its consultant, the

          3  center for watershed protection.

          4                 A fifth one is really kind of an

          5  interesting issue that no one has ever addressed,

          6  effectively at least, it's long-term maintenance.

          7                 You build a water quality treatment

          8  device, you build a tension basin, you put it in

          9  place. It works. But there is no requirements in the

         10  current permits that anybody maintain them. They

         11  fill with sediment, they stop operating. They

         12  essentially are no longer functioning.

         13                 Unless you maintain the stormwater

         14  control devices over the long-term and figure out a

         15  way to make them binding, much of this work would be

         16  for naught, because ten years later you'll have

         17  non-functioning stormwater treatment devices.

         18                 So, we have to figure out a way in

         19  east of permit, and I think this is a major gap in

         20  the statewide regulatory program that still exists

         21  on how to make sure that the land owner who owns

         22  that detention basin or owns that water quality

         23  treatment devices, has to maintain them over the

         24  long-term.

         25                 The sixth one, which is particularly
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          2  cute in Putnam and Westchester and Southern

          3  Dutchess.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: How many do you

          5  have, by the way?

          6                 INSPECTOR GENERAL TIERNEY: This is

          7  the last one. Is stormwater, is small sites, that we

          8  could, or individual homes, we could have a set of

          9  best management practices on sites between  0.2

         10  acres and 1 acre that could be developed, it's used

         11  in Maryland, it's used in a bunch of other states.

         12                 We could make that a requirement,

         13  keep these homes out of wetlands, keep them out of

         14  streams, keep them off of steep slopes and the like.

         15                 And of course, City DEP has a role

         16  here. They had played a very important role, they

         17  did a lot of work here.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Who is it?

         19  Pardon?

         20                 INSPECTOR GENERAL TIERNEY: It's City

         21  DEP.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh.

         23                 INSPECTOR GENERAL TIERNEY: City DEP.

         24  I answered State DEP. Sorry, the City Department of

         25  Environmental Protection, has an incredibly
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          2  important role here. They can, of course, amend

          3  their watershed regulations to address a number of

          4  these issues. They have made commitments and are

          5  doing, in many cases, more intensive reviews under

          6  the State Environmental Quality Review Act, to deal

          7  with stormwater, to deal with it structurally, deal

          8  with impervious surfaces.

          9                 There is, of course, an effective

         10  enforcement program that has been developed and

         11  needs to be actually fulfilled and implemented,

         12  which would involve technical staffing, DEC, DEP

         13  effective enforcement, DEP police involvement, and,

         14  of course, purchasing land.

         15                 If there are certain areas that are

         16  highly sensitive, let's get it, and let's take it

         17  off the market.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         19                 INSPECTOR GENERAL TIERNEY: And that

         20  summarizes the main comments we have today.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Mr. Tierney,

         22  thank you.

         23                 Just something very quickly. I do

         24  have to get to DEP. I know that Mark Hopper has got

         25  a time commitment. I do have just a brief one or two
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          2  items, maybe some of my colleagues do as well.

          3                 With regard to DEC, obviously you've

          4  had some conversations with them and how amenable do

          5  you think they -- like what's your sense from DEC on

          6  their sort of willingness to sort of embrace these

          7  in terms of heightened stormwater controls?

          8                 INSPECTOR GENERAL TIERNEY: I think

          9  they're very open to it. And the reason why I think

         10  they're open to it is that it is because they've

         11  entered into this process, set up the program,

         12  invited stakeholders in and retained the Center for

         13  Watershed protection to help them as professional

         14  consultants design these efforts.

         15                 Some of these are big lift stuff, and

         16  there will have to be a lot of attention from

         17  people, just as yourself, to be able to make DEP, to

         18  be able to get DEC to really take these under

         19  consideration.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I think we've

         21  already come a long way, from the original draft of

         22  the permit, which I don't think anyone is very happy

         23  with, but, you know, DEP and yourself and the

         24  advocates brought pressure to bear, and the next

         25  thing you know, we see a statewide construction
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          2  permit a lot, lot different than it was originally

          3  proposed, and, so, I think that was certainly a

          4  victory, and I just want to keep marching down this

          5  track.

          6                 INSPECTOR GENERAL TIERNEY:

          7  Absolutely.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I just want to

          9  follow-up with a question on that.

         10                 And, again, people should know that

         11  the Statewide permit was just released the other

         12  day, I don't think people have a chance to kind of

         13  fully assimilate it and assess how different it is

         14  from the original draft, but if you had to quantify,

         15  there was the original draft, statewide construction

         16  permit, that had what it had, and then there was the

         17  various ask list and the various entities out there,

         18  and if you take, you know, DEP's asks, and your

         19  asks, and Riverkeepers asks and NYPRIG's asks, how

         20  much did we get? How much better is the statewide

         21  construction permit than what it was? How much of

         22  the loaf did we get?

         23                 INSPECTOR GENERAL TIERNEY: It's --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Come on. Come

         25  on, you know.
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          2                 INSPECTOR GENERAL TIERNEY: Well, it's

          3  significantly improved, and a number of very

          4  important items were addressed and changed and

          5  clarified.

          6                 You know, an example would be DEC's

          7  technical criteria were kind of put forward as some

          8  sort of recommended thing to think about, and now

          9  they want you to do it, those types of items.

         10                 The Inspection Authority is back in

         11  there, the enforcement authority in certain areas of

         12  state were being delegated, DEC is taking it back.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Terrific.

         14                 INSPECTOR GENERAL TIERNEY: So there

         15  are a lot of significant improvements. There's also

         16  just a much cleaner read. You can understand it far

         17  more readily, and I think DEC is under some heavy

         18  pressure right now. They're under severe budget cuts

         19  and time constraints, and I think it wasn't

         20  necessarily anything that was meant to happen, they

         21  had a lot of bugs to work out, and they really

         22  worked with people. I think the other folks coming

         23  in here will tell you that, really worked with

         24  people to try and improve the product.

         25                 One thing that I mention is, just for
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          2  example, you know, the underlying pollutant removal

          3  criteria and the statewide permit?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          5                 INSPECTOR GENERAL TIERNEY: If there's

          6  a ten-pound increase in phosphorus, the current

          7  criteria brings it down to a six pound increase.

          8                 If you're in the East of Hudson

          9  watershed, we're already over our phosphorus budget.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         11                 INSPECTOR GENERAL TIERNEY: We can't

         12  take increases.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         14                 INSPECTOR GENERAL TIERNEY: So we have

         15  to do something to tighten that criteria so it's

         16  actually effective in solving the problem.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay, great.

         18                 I recognize Council Member Koppell

         19  who has a question.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you.

         21  Good afternoon.

         22                 As you know, the City is planning to

         23  build a filtration plant to filter the water from

         24  the east of Hudson.

         25                 INSPECTOR GENERAL TIERNEY: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And I was

          3  wondering, given your experience and working there,

          4  whether you think that there's any what that

          5  controls such as this, and perhaps other controls,

          6  that you made some reference to, could put the City

          7  in a position where it could in fact avoid the

          8  necessity of building a filtration plant.

          9                 INSPECTOR GENERAL TIERNEY: It

         10  certainly is possible, Council Member Koppell. It

         11  certainly is possible that you could solve a

         12  problem. But EPA and the State Department of Health

         13  have gone very far down the road of requiring that

         14  the filtration plant, they're the people that would

         15  have to be convinced that it's not necessary for a

         16  variety of reasons, having to do with the intensity

         17  of development and other factors within the East of

         18  Hudson watershed.

         19                 But, of course, one thing that we're

         20  all afraid of, is that it goes by the shorthand to

         21  filter it and forget about the watershed, that if

         22  you filter the watershed, you won't do enough

         23  watershed protection down the long road.

         24                 It's not some evil plot, it's just

         25  the way it likely could work out.
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          2                 And one thing that our office is

          3  committed to is no matter what happens down the

          4  road, that we protect this watershed as effectively,

          5  because that's what the scientists tell us we should

          6  be doing.

          7                 I don't know if that's a complete

          8  answer, but it's one that's rather --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: It is indeed

         10  helpful, and I think you and your office are

         11  probably aware that many people in the City,

         12  especially people in the area where they want to

         13  build a filtration plant, have grave concerns about

         14  it, and given the cost of it, if things like we're

         15  talking about today and others can avoid it,

         16  notwithstanding that we've gone well down the road

         17  and I know we have, we ought to, in my opinion,

         18  still explore that.

         19                 So, whatever information your office

         20  has, if you share it with me it would be

         21  appreciated.

         22                 I mean, if there are other steps that

         23  could be taken that might assist in avoiding

         24  filtration, we'd like to know what they are so we

         25  could advocate for them.
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          2                 I certainly strongly support the kind

          3  of controls you spoke about today.

          4                 INSPECTOR GENERAL TIERNEY: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

          6  you, Mr. Tierney. I appreciate you being here today.

          7  Thank you for all of your good work on watershed

          8  issues and I appreciate your thoughtful testimony,

          9  and as we go forward and put together our own, you

         10  know, set of recommendations, to put forward to the

         11  State DEC regarding heightened stormwater controls

         12  for East of Hudson, your six recommendations I think

         13  will be front and center.

         14                 INSPECTOR GENERAL TIERNEY: Thank you

         15  very much.

         16                 I just want to apologize. I will have

         17  to leave because I'm doing a --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I understand

         19  that.

         20                 INSPECTOR GENERAL TIERNEY: My

         21  apologies for the other people. I am not leaving

         22  because I don't want to hear you, I just have to

         23  actually go. Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Bon boyage, in

         25  that case.
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          2                 Thank you, Mr. Tierney. And I'll call

          3  our next witness, Mark Hoffer from DEP. Is anybody

          4  else going to be joining you, Mark?

          5                 MR. HOFFER: It's just me.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          7                 Mr. Hoffer, is this your first time

          8  before the Committee in sort of the new --

          9                 MR. HOFFER: Certainly not.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No, since I

         11  became the Chair or whatever?

         12                 MR. HOFFER: I've testified before.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. A senior

         14  moment.

         15                 MR. HOFFER: You've generally gone

         16  through the formalities as a group, since there's

         17  usually a number of us up here.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, sure.

         19                 But first of all, I want to thank you

         20  for being here today, and I will recognize again, as

         21  I did before, your efforts and the efforts of Susan

         22  Amron, of Corp Counsel, in helping us to get a

         23  better statewide construction permit.

         24                 You know, DEC put out the permit, you

         25  folks responded, we've had a positive outcome thus
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          2  far. We want to certainly keep that going.

          3                 If you can give us in your statement

          4  just a minute or two on kind of like the regulatory

          5  backdrop of how this all works, and in your efforts

          6  to make this a better permit and I'll pose the same

          7  question to you that maybe you can speak to on how

          8  much of the loaf we got, in terms of like the

          9  improvements to this statewide permit, and your

         10  thoughts with regard to our efforts for heightened

         11  stormwater controls for East of Hudson, and I thank

         12  you very much for being here and for your good

         13  efforts on behalf of the watershed and by extension

         14  the people of the City of New York.

         15                 Donna will do the little ritual and

         16  if you can state your name for the record and

         17  proceed with your good testimony, we'd be very

         18  grateful to hear it.

         19                 MR. HOFFER: Surely. Good morning, Mr.

         20  Chairman. My name is Mark --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We've got to do

         22  that first.

         23                 MR. HOFFER: We've got to do that

         24  first?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.
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          2                 MR. HOFFER: Okay.

          3                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

          4  right hand.

          5                 In the testimony that you're about to

          6  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

          7  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          8                 MR. HOFFER: Absolutely, I do.

          9                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         11  Please state your name for the record and give your

         12  testimony.

         13                 MR. HOFFER: My name, for the record,

         14  is Mark D. Hoffer. I'm the General Counsel of the

         15  New York City Department of Environmental

         16  Protection, otherwise known as DEP. I'm very, very

         17  happy to be here this morning.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do we have your

         19  statement? Do we have a statement from Mr. Hoffer?

         20                 MR. HOFFER: I have a statement

         21  prepared, but I don't have copies.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, fine. Quite

         23  all right.

         24                 MR. HOFFER: Mr. Chairman, I will make

         25  copies for all of the members of the Committee. I
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          2  just finished writing it this morning.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          4                 MR. HOFFER: So I apologize.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

          6                 MR. HOFFER: I'm appearing here today

          7  as the representative of DEP Commissioner

          8  Christopher O. Ward, who unfortunately is unable to

          9  attend himself. He wanted me to express his thanks

         10  to the Chairman in the Committee for the invitation

         11  to appear for the opportunity to offer DEP's

         12  comments on the matter at hand, namely the option by

         13  the State of New York of new Phase II general

         14  permits, covering stormwater discharges from

         15  construction activities and from municipal separate

         16  stormwater sewer systems, what we refer to as MS4s.

         17                 And I'll be happy, Mr. Chairman, to

         18  touch on all of the items that you mentioned.

         19                 Let me begin by noting that under the

         20  City Charter, DEP is charged with, among other

         21  things, operating and maintaining the City's water,

         22  wastewater systems, and taking the steps necessary

         23  to ensure that all New Yorkers enjoy safe and

         24  healthy drinking water.

         25                 DEP considers this to be its core
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          2  mission, takes this responsibility with the utmost

          3  seriousness.

          4                 With respect to protection of the

          5  City's drinking water supply, much of the focus in

          6  recent years has been on meeting the dictates of the

          7  federal Safe Drinking Water Act, and USEPA surface

          8  water treatment rule.

          9                 As a result of that statute and a

         10  rule, DEP has concentrated more and more over the

         11  past decade on developing measures, methods and

         12  techniques to protect the quality of the City's

         13  drinking water at the source. Namely, in the Upstate

         14  watersheds where the overwhelming majority of the

         15  City's drinking water originates.

         16                 In keeping with this approach, DEP

         17  devoted years of effort in developing a watershed

         18  protection program, and in negotiating and ultimate

         19  securing the historic 1997 Watershed Memorandum of

         20  Agreement, which puts into place a watershed land

         21  acquisition program, which is still ongoing, revised

         22  and updated City watershed rules and regulations,

         23  which are applicable to all three of the City's

         24  watersheds, and a series of environmental and

         25  economic partnership programs which engage upstate
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          2  communities, as partners in addressing water quality

          3  problems and preventing new problems from occurring.

          4                 Threats to the water quality come in

          5  a variety of forms. There is point source pollution,

          6  as Jim Tierney and you mentioned previously, within

          7  the case of the City's watersheds. Generally means

          8  discharges from City's sewage treatment facilities,

          9  such as wastewater treatment plants.

         10                 There is also non-point source

         11  pollution, which in our case typically means

         12  erosion, and stormwater runoff associated with

         13  construction activities, such as land clearing and

         14  grading.

         15                 And then the runoff of phosphorus of

         16  soil, grease, dirt and other pollutants, resulting

         17  from the impact of precipitation, rainfall, on

         18  impervious surfaces, whether it is directly this is

         19  directly off the surface, or whether it's carried

         20  away by storm sewer.

         21                 The City and DEP have taken steps to

         22  address each type of pollution. With respect to

         23  point source pollution, DEP's new watershed

         24  regulations require that wastewater treatment

         25  plants, which we call WWTPs, be upgraded to meet
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          2  stricter standards.

          3                 And DEP is in the midst of funding

          4  upgrades at all 100 plus wastewater treatment plants

          5  on the watershed to meet those standards and achieve

          6  tertiary levels of treatment.

          7                 Upgrades are already substantially

          8  completed the four largest facilities discharging

          9  into the Catskill and Delaware Watersheds, which

         10  together account for 80 plus percent of the total

         11  wastewater effluent being discharged from plants

         12  into those watersheds.

         13                 All told, we expect that this

         14  unprecedented City investment in water quality

         15  protection will exceed $270 million, and that's the

         16  upgrade program alone.

         17                 With respect to non-point source

         18  pollution, which is the focus of the hearing today,

         19  DEP's new regulations give the City for the very

         20  first time direct regulatory jurisdiction over a

         21  variety of construction-related activities, such as

         22  land clearing or grading involving two or more

         23  acres.

         24                 In most cases, initiating the

         25  constructional-aided activities listed in the
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          2  regulation requires the preparation and approval by

          3  DEP of a stormwater pollution prevention plan or

          4  SPPP.

          5                 Detailing the steps that a land-owner

          6  commits to take to prevent erosion and runoff while

          7  construction proceeds, and from the structures and

          8  other permanent improvements being built as part of

          9  the project.

         10                 Although DEP's regulations

         11  incorporate new standards tailored specifically to

         12  the geology and geography of the City's watersheds,

         13  such as special standards for control and treatment

         14  of phosphorus runoff and phosphorus restricted

         15  reservoir basins. The regulations do rely heavily on

         16  the existing state general permit for stormwater

         17  discharges, number GP 93-06, which was issued, as

         18  you know, in 1993.

         19                 In addition, the City, through DEP is

         20  investing capital dollars in addressing potential

         21  stormwater runoff, both from developed areas with

         22  insufficient storm water controls, and from new

         23  development.

         24                 As an example, DEP has provided 7.6

         25  million in funding to retrofit stormwater control
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          2  measures in areas of impervious surfaces in the West

          3  of Hudson watershed.

          4                 DEP is providing further funding,

          5  essentially doubling the program in connection with

          6  the issuance of the new filtration avoidance

          7  determination for the Catskill and Delaware water

          8  supplies, which took place in November of 2002.

          9                 DEP has also provided approximately

         10  31 million in funding to address stormwater runoff

         11  from new development projects from the West of

         12  Hudson Watershed, and $68 million to Westchester and

         13  Putnam County, for a variety of pollution prevention

         14  activities East of Hudson, including stormwater

         15  retrofits.

         16                 DEP has also been working with the

         17  New York State Department of Environmental

         18  Conservation, DEC, on it's phase II stormwater

         19  control program being developed in response to

         20  changes in federal law and regulation, and we'll

         21  touch for a moment on the background that you

         22  mentioned.

         23                 As the Committee is aware, the

         24  federal Clean Water Act, as amended by the Water

         25  Quality Act of 1987, mandated that USEPA developed
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          2  rules to control water pollution caused by non-point

          3  sources.

          4                 Phase one of the resulting rules

          5  required National Pollutant Discharge Elimination

          6  System Permits, NPDES, on a national level, SPDES on

          7  a state level, for stormwater discharges at medium

          8  and large MS 4's; that is, municipal separate

          9  stormwater sewer system serving populations of

         10  100,000 or more, and for 11 categories of industrial

         11  activity, including construction that disturbs five

         12  or more acres of land.

         13                 In 1993, in response to the federal

         14  Phase 1 regulations, and under delegated authority

         15  to administer the phase 1 stormwater program in New

         16  York State, DEC developed and issued a general

         17  permit governing stormwater discharges from

         18  construction activities that disturbed five or more

         19  acres.

         20                 In 1999, EPA promulgated phase II

         21  stormwater regulations, intended to extend

         22  regulatory control to a broader universe of

         23  potential non-point sources of pollution, including

         24  regulated small MS4s, and construction projects

         25  disturbing one to five acres of land.
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          2                 Operators of MS4s located in

          3  urbanized areas, population greater than 50,000 and

          4  density greater than 1,000 persons per square mile,

          5  are automatically subject to the phase II program,

          6  unless they are already participating in Phase I.

          7                 In addition, USEPA has established

          8  guidelines for designating other areas as phase II

          9  participants, and more of that later.

         10                 In response to the phase II

         11  regulations, DEC is developing two new general

         12  permits for stormwater, one devoted to small MS4s,

         13  and the other to construction activities covering

         14  land disturbance of at least one acre, and here DEC

         15  is reserving its right to require compliance even

         16  for projects involving less than one acre, if DEC

         17  determines a compliance is necessary under the ECL,

         18  the State Environmental Conservation Law.

         19                 In September 2002, DEC released draft

         20  permits for public comment and DEP has been in a

         21  continuous dialogue with state officials since that

         22  time.

         23                 Over the terms of the permits and

         24  whether they should be modified or improved, even

         25  before the draft permits were issued, DEP staff

                                                            43

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  participated in a number of stakeholder meetings

          3  with DEC, exploring what form those new permits

          4  should take.

          5                 Finally, we submitted a lengthy

          6  comment later dated November 27, 2002, expressing

          7  our views on improvements that we felt were needed

          8  in each of the draft permits, to maximize their

          9  enforceability and their effectiveness as tools to

         10  control non-point source pollution in the watershed.

         11  A copy of that comment letter I believe has already

         12  been submitted to the Committee and I will append a

         13  further copy to the statement.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We have it. We

         15  have it.

         16                 MR. HOFFER: Okay.

         17                 In our discussions with DEC and in

         18  our comment letter, we stressed a number of points

         19  that are worth mentioning and I'm going to mention a

         20  few things in addition to comments that Mr. Tierney

         21  already placed on the record.

         22                 1) We continually stress to the state

         23  that in light of the unique geography and Land Use

         24  patterns associated with the East of Hudson

         25  Watershed, along with continuing development
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          2  pressure being placed on portions of that watershed,

          3  the entire East of Hudson watershed area should be

          4  designated as a regulated MS4 area for purposes of

          5  the MS4 permit.

          6                 I know you mentioned this before, Mr.

          7  Chairman.

          8                 Second, we also stressed that DEC

          9  must retain direct regulatory control under the

         10  construction permit for covered construction

         11  activities and the language in the draft permit

         12  suggestive of delegating regulatory oversight over

         13  such activities from municipalities operating under

         14  the MS4 permit must be dropped. Given the importance

         15  of non-point source pollution in the City's

         16  watershed, especially East of Hudson, we felt that

         17  it's imperative that the State retain direct control

         18  to ensure consistency, objectivity and strict

         19  compliance with permit standards.

         20                 Three, we urge the State to make

         21  clear that certain basic elements of stormwater

         22  management and control should apply even to small

         23  projects, such as the construction of single-family

         24  residences.

         25                 These include, among others, basic
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          2  requirements for site stabilization and ongoing

          3  maintenance of best management practices that have

          4  been installed.

          5                 Four, we urge the state to make clear

          6  the project information, including notices of intent

          7  and OI's, stormwater pollution prevention plans,

          8  which the state refers to as SWPPs, and other

          9  project records be made available to agencies such

         10  as DEP, which do not enforce local building or

         11  zoning codes, but which do have concurrent

         12  regulatory jurisdiction over stormwater under

         13  approved watershed rules and regulations.

         14                 Fifth, we joined with other parties,

         15  including Mr. Tierney and others, in urging the

         16  state to retain requirements for weekly inspections

         17  of construction sites, rather than stretching

         18  inspections to every two weeks, and we have learned

         19  in many, many cases frequent inspections and

         20  up-to-date knowledge of conditions in the field are

         21  key to timely and effective of enforcement of

         22  environmental permits.

         23                 We are pleased to note that when the

         24  DEC issued its final permits on January 8th of this

         25  year, 2003, that many of our comments on these
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          2  issues were taken seriously by DEC, and along with

          3  comments from other interested parties, many of whom

          4  are here today, were used as the basis for several

          5  changes to the permits, and I'll note some of them

          6  for the record:

          7                 First, the State did designate, as

          8  the Chair mentioned up front, the entire East of

          9  Hudson watershed area as a regulated MS4, which

         10  requires the towns and villages located in that area

         11  to operate, inspect and maintain their stormwater

         12  sewer systems in a manner consistent with DEC's

         13  general permit, and with the goal of controlling

         14  stormwater runoff so that it neither causes or

         15  contributes to a water quality violation.

         16                 Second, the State dropped the

         17  language suggesting the compliance with the

         18  municipally administered construction aspects of the

         19  MS4 permit would qualify as compliance with the

         20  construction permit.

         21                 The State also added language making

         22  clear the purposes of construction-related

         23  activities. Each permit stands on its own two feet,

         24  and that an owner applicant must take care to comply

         25  with the requirements of each permit.
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          2                 Third, the State reorganized the

          3  permit provisions defining minimum SWPPP components,

          4  making it clear that even in the case of small

          5  projects, such as the construction of single-family

          6  homes, an owner applicant must still take steps to

          7  stabilize the site and maintain any installed BMPs.

          8                 Fourth, the State added express

          9  language in the construction permit provisions

         10  dealing with the submission of NOIs, stormwater

         11  pollution prevention plans and required reports to

         12  governmental agencies, indicating that these

         13  documents are also to be furnished to other

         14  authorized agencies, including local, regional or

         15  state agencies having authority to review stormwater

         16  discharges "under any approved watershed protection

         17  plan or regulations." And that means an agency such

         18  as DEP, which has state-approved watershed

         19  regulations.

         20                 Fifth, the State construction permit

         21  now requires that a qualified professional conduct

         22  on-site inspections, after commencement of

         23  construction at least once every seven calendar

         24  days, as opposed to 14 days.

         25                 Although we are pleased that the
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          2  state made these modifications to the final Phase II

          3  permit, and we commend the state for its

          4  responsiveness in that regard, we remain concerned

          5  about a number of areas where we feel the permits

          6  can and should be strengthened. These include the

          7  following, and I'll simply add a couple of items

          8  that Jim Tierney didn't touch upon.

          9                 One --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And also, Mark,

         11  if I could, when you say permits you mean the

         12  statewide construction permit, as well as --

         13                 MR. HOFFER: I'm referring to both

         14  permits, and I'll mention in particular looking for

         15  heightened protection in the East of Hudson

         16  Watershed.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Great.

         18                 MR. HOFFER: First, although there was

         19  language hinting at this concept in a number of

         20  places, we are concerned that the construction

         21  permit lacks a clear and unambiguous statement, that

         22  the bottom line, in terms of the purpose of the

         23  permit and the inspected standard of performance for

         24  any stormwater pollution prevention plan submitted

         25  by an applicant, is to make certain that post
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          2  construction conditions are not, repeat, are not

          3  substantially different from preconstruction

          4  conditions, in terms of the quantity, quality, and

          5  temporal distribution, that means distribution over

          6  time of stormwater runoff.

          7                 This is essentially analogous to the

          8  standard utilized by DEP in conducting its own

          9  stormwater reviews and issuing approvals under its

         10  own watershed regulations.

         11                 Although I'm advised that this

         12  concept is set out in the state, one or more of the

         13  state's design manuals that the permits reference,

         14  we feel very, very strongly that there should be a

         15  statement to this effect in permit language itself.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And this should

         17  be in the statewide construction permit?

         18                 MR. HOFFER: This would be in the

         19  statewide construction permit, and we would

         20  certainly want to see this in any special permit

         21  adding protective conditions for the Hudson

         22  watershed.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: If this were put

         24  into permit then it would apply statewide and

         25  therefore take care of West of Hudson as well; am I
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          2  saying that right?

          3                 MR. HOFFER: If it was in a statewide

          4  permit, it would certainly be applicable across the

          5  board in the state.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. So, this

          7  is the ask so-to-speak? We want to see that in

          8  there?

          9                 MR. HOFFER: This is a continuing

         10  concern that we have and certainly something that as

         11  we move to a East of Hudson, focus of East of Hudson

         12  discussion with the state, which we understand is

         13  the next item on the agenda.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         15                 MR. HOFFER: It's something we intend

         16  to raise and something we intend to stress.

         17                 We would hope, also, that at an

         18  appropriate point the State would think about adding

         19  stronger language to the statewide permit, because

         20  we think this is relevant statewide, but certainly

         21  with respect to the East of Hudson watershed, it is

         22  a concern that we intend to note strongly.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Great.

         24                 MR. HOFFER: Second, we feel that the

         25  MS4 permit should be revised to make clear that in
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          2  reservoir basins that are subject to Total Maximum

          3  Daily Loads, TMDLs, for a given pollutant, and

          4  you've heard my predecessor speak about problems

          5  associated with phosphorus in the watershed, and I

          6  note that we do have TMDLs for phosphorus, that have

          7  been promulgated by the state and accepted by USEPA,

          8  that where it is clear that the non-point

          9  contribution of that pollutant of concern must be

         10  reduced.

         11                 The subject municipality is required

         12  to take action, not only to control the introduction

         13  of that pollutant from new construction, but also

         14  from existing developed areas within that reservoir

         15  basin or basins.

         16                 Generally our concern is that the MS4

         17  permit is phrased in many places as a

         18  forward-looking document, looking to new

         19  construction, that is only half the equation.

         20                 The other half of the equation

         21  equally important is making sure that we do what we

         22  can do, to bring phosphorus loadings down, indeed to

         23  bring pollutant loadings down from existing

         24  impervious surfaces, where we know there is a

         25  contribution to non-point runoff.
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          2                 Since DEC has expressed its

          3  willingness to continue its dialogue with the City,

          4  and perhaps even more importantly, has expressed a

          5  willingness to consider issuing a separate special

          6  set of permits for the East of Hudson watershed,

          7  incorporating additional protections for that area,

          8  we intend to go forward and push these concerns with

          9  the state.

         10                 We note that at least one stakeholder

         11  meeting has already occurred with the City and DEP

         12  in attendance to discuss that very manner, and we

         13  intend to remain active on that issue.

         14                 As I mentioned earlier, Mr. Chairman,

         15  and as I think was echoed in several of your

         16  comments, there is a serious development pressure in

         17  several portions to the East of Hudson Watershed,

         18  and it is imperative that responsible and responsive

         19  steps be taken by both the City and the State, to

         20  ensure that development, if it occurs, occurs in

         21  appropriate locations, in an environmentally

         22  sensitive matter, and without adding further stress

         23  to the water supply, especially by way of erosion

         24  during construction and stormwater runoff, once

         25  construction has been completed.
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          2                 We intend to submit further comments

          3  to the State, both orally and in writing, about the

          4  areas of concern I have noted, and our suggestions

          5  on how to satisfy each.

          6                 We will also review all of the

          7  comments previously submitted to the State and all

          8  of the language of the new permits, which we

          9  likewise have not finished running through yet, and

         10  we intend to reraise issues where we feel that

         11  additional protective conditions are warranted in an

         12  East of Hudson special permit.

         13                 That basically concludes my prepared

         14  remarks. As I indicated, I'll make sure that

         15  appropriate copies are provided to the Committee and

         16  the staff.

         17                 I want to thank the chair and the

         18  Committee once again for allowing us to appear and

         19  add our comments on the record.

         20                 Again, I express regret that

         21  Commissioner Ward couldn't join us today, and thank

         22  the Committee for its continued support for the work

         23  that we do in protecting the water supply.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

         25  Hoffer. I greatly appreciate your comments, and more

                                                            54

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  importantly, your efforts on behalf of the

          3  watershed. And I guess -- I mean, I had a certain

          4  characterization at the outset that the East of

          5  Hudson heightened stormwater protections would be

          6  kind of like first on the agenda, because that is

          7  the area, which is I guess most left undone by

          8  what's taken place over the last two weeks or so.

          9  And do you have any sense for DEC's timetable to

         10  speak to this or like the process by which they're

         11  going to assimilate comments or what role this

         12  Committee or advocates can play in trying to work

         13  collaboratively to get it to a goal line that we can

         14  all sort of live with?

         15                 How is DEC going to approach this

         16  whole thing, and, you know, work with you all, and

         17  what role can we play to be most helpful to what we

         18  all want?

         19                 MR. HOFFER: I'm not completely sure

         20  how DEC intends to proceed. As I mentioned, they

         21  have convened one stakeholder meeting already, where

         22  we attended, along with many of the other parties

         23  who I believe are here today. I don't have a strong

         24  sense of their timing. I think obviously one thing

         25  we all need to do, not only DEP, certainly members
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          2  of the Committee, if they share this interest, that

          3  I believe you do, and members of the advocate

          4  committee, is to essentially keep attention focused

          5  on this issue and don't let it slip.

          6                 It may mean writing letters, it may

          7  mean making phone calls to the appropriate people at

          8  DEC. It may mean asking for additional stakeholder

          9  meetings to make the points plain, and certainly, it

         10  means requesting formally the opportunity to submit

         11  comments and detail in writing on a draft, or even

         12  in advance of a draft, to make sure that all of the

         13  concerns are properly catalogued and identified and

         14  if parties have specific concrete suggestions on

         15  permit language to add, that this is given over to

         16  DEC rather than simply seeding the drafting task and

         17  awaiting to see what the product is.

         18                 I'm encouraged by the fact that some

         19  changes were made. I concur with Jim Tierney's

         20  assessment that the changes were significant.

         21                 I also concur that there is

         22  additional that needs to be paid and that the issue

         23  doesn't stop with the issuance of these new permits,

         24  and I get the sense, at least in the conversations

         25  that I've had with DEC staff, and I know you've been
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          2  talking to folks as well, that they have bought into

          3  the notion that this is a serious issue and they are

          4  listening.

          5                 Will we get everything we ask for? I

          6  don't have a crystal ball.

          7                 Is this important? And is it an

          8  important item on DEP's agenda? It certainly is. And

          9  we intend, as I said, both orally and in writing to

         10  continue to push DEC, consistent with the MS 4

         11  designation that they've made, to treat the East of

         12  Hudson Watershed as an area of special sensitivity

         13  and concern.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         15                 So, when DEC proceeds on this, you

         16  know, for them to do the heightened stormwater

         17  protection, that would be in the context of the MS4

         18  permit, or am I getting that right?

         19                 MR. HOFFER: Well, I think DEC has

         20  been talking about special permits, specifically for

         21  East of Hudson, and I think we have some concerns

         22  and some suggestions that attach both to the MS4

         23  program and the construction both.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And with regard

         25  to I guess the things that we I guess didn't get in
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          2  the statewide permit, some of those can be addressed

          3  with regard to East of Hudson, but what chance do we

          4  have or what sense do you have that we may be able

          5  to do something to affect the statewide permit, for

          6  things that we didn't get? Or would there be the

          7  possibility of taking some of those things that we

          8  didn't get in the Statewide permit and making those

          9  things apply to West of Hudson or something like

         10  that, to have like a special thing for West of

         11  Hudson?

         12                 Again, you have a more detailed

         13  knowledge of all the ins and outs of this, but

         14  certainly we're focusing efforts on, you know,

         15  number one, getting everything we could in the

         16  Statewide permit, and we got a lot of it and God

         17  bless us, and now we want to see what we can do for

         18  East of Hudson and, you know, take care of that,

         19  and, you know, to the extent that there may be an

         20  opportunity, if you can't go back and effect a

         21  statewide permit, but to do something as appropriate

         22  in terms of heightened protection for West of

         23  Hudson, whether that's something that you're

         24  contemplating or makes any sense or should come

         25  after the attention that's paid through East of
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          2  Hudson or what's your sense on that?

          3                 MR. HOFFER: I don't want to belittle

          4  concerns on either side of the river.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          6                 MR. HOFFER: I know that a lot of

          7  attention has been paid to East of Hudson. I think

          8  the answer is we will take, we plan to take a much

          9  closer look line by line at the new permits, which

         10  we haven't done yet, and see if we feel there were

         11  gaps that need filling, vis-a-vis west of Hudson as

         12  well.

         13                 I don't have a strong sense one way

         14  or the other as to whether the state would entertain

         15  any kind of reopening of the issue, vis-a-vis the

         16  West of Hudson watershed, but it's certainly

         17  something we can and will take a look at.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         19                 Mr. Hoffer, thank you so much for

         20  laying out your concerns, you know, for us. We

         21  certainly would like to work in partnership with you

         22  and the Administration and Corp Counsel, and the

         23  good folks here today.

         24                 I think we have something to be happy

         25  for and that, you know, your efforts have born
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          2  fruit, we greatly appreciate that.

          3                 You and Susan are among I guess the

          4  unsung heroes of trying to get clean water for all

          5  of us. We greatly appreciate that, and we want to

          6  work in close partnership with you to advance your

          7  concerns to the State because they're our concerns

          8  as well, and to the extent that we can get a copy of

          9  your statement at the earliest possible time, we'll

         10  talk amongst ourselves to see if we can advance

         11  those concerns in a constructive way, to the state

         12  and keep our streak of good luck going.

         13                 So, thank you very much for coming

         14  before us today, and please give our best wishes to

         15  Chris Ward and all of the good folks at DEP.

         16                 Thanks very much.

         17                 MR. HOFFER: Thanks, Mr. Chairman. We

         18  appreciate it.

         19                 We certainly appreciate the intentive

         20  involved level of interest that the Committee has

         21  shown both under your predecessor and under your

         22  stewardship, and we look forward to working with

         23  you.

         24                 These are matters that affect the

         25  future of the City. They are important to all of us,
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          2  and anything we can do in partnership to advance

          3  concerns that we have and enhance protection of the

          4  water supply is for to the good.

          5                 I agree with you that we've made some

          6  good progress here and we intend to keep the ball

          7  rolling. So we appreciate the opportunity.

          8                 I promise as soon as I get back to

          9  the shop to run copies of the statement off and get

         10  it into staff. If there's any other assistance we

         11  can provide, I would be happy to do so.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         13                 MR. HOFFER: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

         15  Hoffer. I appreciate it very much.

         16                 Our next witness will be Rich Muller

         17  of the Office C. Virginia Fields. I have to take

         18  just a one-minute break. I'll be right back.

         19                 (Recess taken.)

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm going to

         21  commence with our hearing. We have Rich Muller, the

         22  Office of the Manhattan Borough President, C.

         23  Virginia Fields, our great advocate on behalf of the

         24  watershed, and Donna Will jump you through the hoop

         25  and then you can commence with your testimony.
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          2                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: In the testimony that

          3  you're about to give, do you swear or affirm to tell

          4  the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

          5  truth?

          6                 MR. MULLER: I do.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right answer,

          8  okay.

          9                 Please state your name and commence

         10  with your testimony.

         11                 Welcome. Nice to have you here.

         12                 MR. MULLER: Good afternoon, Chairman

         13  Gennaro, Council Member Koppell, and staff of the

         14  Committee. My name is Richard Muller, and I'm

         15  pleased to deliver the comments of the Manhattan

         16  Borough President C. Virginia Fields, on the

         17  Department of Environmental Conservation's draft

         18  Phase II stormwater permits.

         19                 Borough President Fields fully

         20  supports the resolutions under consideration today,

         21  a heightened stormwater permit program for the East

         22  of Hudson portion of the New York City watershed,

         23  with a designation of the entire area's municipal

         24  separate stormwater sewer system, MS4, is the

         25  appropriate response to its density, development
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          2  pressure and geology.

          3                 In like manner, the draft permit for

          4  stormwater discharge from construction activity,

          5  SPDES permit, addresses a form of pollution that can

          6  do as much damage to the watershed in months, as

          7  would normally occur over many years.

          8                 The Borough President joins the

          9  Committees, and we hope the Council calls for these

         10  enhanced protections of our watershed.

         11                 Now that our stewardship of the West

         12  of Hudson watershed has convinced the federal

         13  government that it can remain one of the few of the

         14  largest unfiltered water supplies in the nation, we

         15  must accord the East of Hudson the same vigilance.

         16                 Advocates have warned that proceeding

         17  with the filtration of the Croton system will result

         18  in diminished vigor in resisting unsustainable

         19  development and degradation on this side of the

         20  Hudson.

         21                 The designation of the East of Hudson

         22  watershed is wholly MS4, adoption of a heightened

         23  stormwater program and a strengthened SPDES permit

         24  for construction activity are the kinds of measures

         25  that will allay such concerns.
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          2                 Borough President fields is mindful

          3  of the Upstate community's needs for development and

          4  economic vitality. These measures will not hamper

          5  development, they will instead require proper

          6  planning and execution of projects, measures that

          7  will minimize increase of impermeable surfaces, and

          8  unnecessary runoff from construction sites and those

          9  that result in greater scrutiny of new development

         10  are critical for the East of Hudson watershed.

         11                 Regarding construction protection of

         12  natural resources, such as slopes, buffers and

         13  wetlands would be desirable additions.

         14                 The Borough President looks forward

         15  to continuing collaboration with this Committee, and

         16  I thank you for the opportunity to testify.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

         18  Muller. We can always count on the Borough President

         19  to support our efforts here at the Committee. Well,

         20  when we're right. When we're right. And, so, we're

         21  grateful for her continued advocacy on behalf of the

         22  watershed and all the many issues that we face, and

         23  thank you for coming out here today, and please

         24  thank the Borough President for her partnership with

         25  us, and we won't hesitate to call upon her. She can
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          2  be part of the collaborative effort, because we're

          3  going to be going to State DEC with our little ask

          4  list, and to the extent that she can weigh in with

          5  DEC, that certainly would be a big help. Every

          6  little push helps, and she's got a great pulpit from

          7  which to do that from.

          8                 So, we would urge her to kind of, you

          9  know, stay on the train and keep pushing DEC to

         10  completely get started. So, we would urge her to do

         11  that, and if you would carry the message back to

         12  her, we would appreciate it.

         13                 MR. MULLER: Thank you. I'll convey

         14  your comments.

         15                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And we have a

         17  question from Council Member Koppell.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I noted your

         19  interest, your reference to those who are concerned

         20  about this because they're fearful that it might

         21  suggest the filtration might cause us and others to

         22  be less concerned about pollution.

         23                 Do I take it from your comment that

         24  the Borough President purports filtration or is that

         25  not something that I can assume?
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          2                 MR. MULLER: The Borough President is

          3  on the record as having accepted the necessity of

          4  filtration of the Croton.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, all I

          6  could say is that perhaps in light of new

          7  technologies and also actions such as this, maybe

          8  the Borough President should take another look at

          9  it.

         10                 MR. MULLER: I'll bring that back to

         11  the Borough President.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Okay, thank

         13  you.

         14                 MR. MULLER: Thank you, sir.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Mr.

         16  Muller. I appreciate it. Please give our best to

         17  Virginia.

         18                 Okay, next we'll hear from Marc Yaggi

         19  from Riverkeeper and Cathleen Breen of NYPIRG, can

         20  come up in a panel, if that's okay. To be followed

         21  by Jeff Baker of the Coalition of Watershed Towns.

         22                 We have some other witnesses that

         23  will come after that as well. So, stay tuned for

         24  lots of fun.

         25                 I've got a copy of Mr. Yaggi's
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          2  testimony. Here comes Cathleen's. Okay.

          3                 So, thanks for being here. Thanks for

          4  your advocacy on this very important issue, and it's

          5  always a pleasure to have both of you here.

          6                 Donna will do the swear-in ritual and

          7  then you can state your names for the record and

          8  proceed with your testimony, then we'll ask

          9  questions, I guess, of both of you.

         10                 We'll do Yaggi's first, all right?

         11                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         12  right hand.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You don't have

         14  to stand.

         15                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: In the testimony that

         16  you're about to give, do you swear or affirm to tell

         17  the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

         18  truth?

         19                 MR. YAGGI: I do.

         20                 MS. BREEN: I do.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Thanks

         22  very much. Cathleen, I guess you can start. State

         23  your name for the record and proceed with your

         24  testimony.

         25                 Welcome.
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          2                 MS. BREEN: Thank you.

          3                 My name is Cathleen Breen. I'm the

          4  Watershed Protection Coordinator for the New York

          5  Public Interest Research Group, NYPIRG.

          6                 NYPIRG has long been active on

          7  protection of New York City's drinking water supply,

          8  and is one of the five environmental signatories to

          9  the referenced 1997 memorandum of agreement,

         10  watershed agreement.

         11                 I'd like to thank the Chair and the

         12  Committee and the Council for holding this hearing

         13  today on a project that we think is of critical

         14  importance, and in particular for having such a

         15  strong role in the formation of the changes that

         16  occurred on the Statewide permits.

         17                 We fully support the resolutions that

         18  are presented today, and would like to be on record

         19  as saying so.

         20                 Many of the comments that are in my

         21  written testimony today are comments that were said

         22  by both Jim Tierney from the New York State Attorney

         23  General's Office, and Mark Hoffer from the New York

         24  City DEP. So, without being redundant I would like

         25  to just reiterate some of those points that I think
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          2  are the highlights, as well as to touch upon some

          3  areas that I think I'd like to also stress need to

          4  be in a heightened --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

          6                 MS. BREEN: -- Watershed permit.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Certainly any

          8  kind of value added that you can bring to what's

          9  already been said, that would be most beneficial.

         10  But, sure, go for it.

         11                 MS. BREEN: Thank you.

         12                 I also want to mention that although

         13  the League of Women Voters are not here, I did

         14  submit on behalf of them testimony for the record.

         15                 NYPIRG, Riverkeeper, League of Women

         16  Voters, and many other environmental organizations

         17  actively pursued DEC in changing many of the

         18  provisions of the draft permits that had come out.

         19  And as was mentioned today, there were significant

         20  changes that we're happy to see.

         21                 However, there were also, as pointed

         22  out today, changes that were not there that we think

         23  should be. And in particular, in the East of Hudson

         24  permit, which we're all striving to have, the East

         25  of Hudson, as stated today, is an important part of
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          2  the New York City watershed. The different water

          3  supply for nine and a half million New Yorkers

          4  requires the utmost vigilance, and to that end, the

          5  one size fits all permit doesn't work there.

          6                 So, one of the things that I'd like

          7  to point out that maybe was touched upon today but I

          8  want to expound on, is the need to have the East of

          9  Hudson permit requiring a very strong, stormwater

         10  management program, that really emphasizes

         11  non-structural best management practices.

         12                 One of the things that was talked

         13  about was the long-term maintenance was necessary.

         14  Well, most of that maintenance occurs, not entirely,

         15  but most on structural BMPs. Nonstructural BMPs are

         16  a way that we think should be emphasized in the East

         17  of Hudson. Preventive measures are more

         18  cost-effective than fixing the problem after the

         19  fact.

         20                 Those preventive measures include

         21  better site design, using low-impact development,

         22  and things of that nature of which we've expounded

         23  somewhat in our testimony. We've also expounded in

         24  our draft permit comments and will do so in

         25  subsequent comments that we make to DEC on East of
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          2  Hudson permit requirements.

          3                 But it's a living document. The

          4  stormwater management plan should be one that

          5  evolves as technology and science evolves and that

          6  should be a strong component of any permit in

          7  particular East of Hudson.

          8                 One of the things that also, aside

          9  from the preventative measures, is the current

         10  permit leave a lot of discretion, leave a lot up to

         11  the municipalities to sort of figure out what those

         12  BMPs are which ones they should use.

         13                 While they provide a list, a tool

         14  box, per se, many of those BMPs don't fit the East

         15  of Hudson, and as such, the East of Hudson permit

         16  should have, with the guidance of DEC, and help from

         17  New York City DEP, a list of best management

         18  practices that work in East of Hudson, that would be

         19  applicable specifically for the East of Hudson

         20  watershed, and that we really strongly suggest that

         21  that be part of any permitting program East of

         22  Hudson.

         23                 One of the other things I want to

         24  point out in the MS4 permit is that there needs to

         25  be more guidance from DEC on how they are going to
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          2  achieve those six minimum control measures. Some of

          3  the suggestions are, with respect to public

          4  education and outreach, which was one of the first

          5  control measures, was to have real public education

          6  on the impacts of de-icers. It's not just for the

          7  municipalities on what road salt does for in terms

          8  of impact on water quality, but for the home-owners

          9  who also apply road salt to de-ice.

         10                 There's that level of participation

         11  and outreach that needs to be done East of Hudson.

         12                 Plus, coordination within the

         13  counties, in particular, Westchester County, Putnam

         14  County, many of the programs could be achieved

         15  through coordinated efforts and many of the public

         16  education components are already existing. So,

         17  instead of reinventing the wheel for the

         18  municipalities, then there could be a coordinated

         19  effort and there should be a coordinated effort,

         20  where a lot of the outreach information is done

         21  either statewide or countywide.

         22                 Public involvement should be more

         23  clearly explained in the East of Hudson permit.

         24  There are a lot of programs that are throughout the

         25  country, the stenciling of storm drains, the Adopt A
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          2  Stream program, there are a number of them that East

          3  of Hudson should and could adopt, and we strongly

          4  urge that.

          5                 One of the important parts of

          6  figuring out the six minimum controls will be

          7  Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination. And one

          8  of the ways --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: What's that

         10  again? Could you just repeat that?

         11                 MS. BREEN: The Illicit Discharge

         12  Detection and Elimination.

         13                 And one of the ways --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Illicit?

         15                 MS. BREEN: Illicit.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Illicit okay.

         17                 MS. BREEN: Right. Shouldn't be.

         18                 One of the ways that municipalities

         19  are meant to figure out what is being illicitly

         20  discharged is to do mapping of their stormwater

         21  outfalls.

         22                 This is an area where we think DEC

         23  really can play a role. DEC, along with DEP and with

         24  the EPA, have coordinated GIS, which is Geographical

         25  Information Systems, and, again, back to the theory
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          2  of not reinventing the wheel, this GIS technology

          3  should be applied East of Hudson to map the

          4  stormwater outfalls that currently exist. That

          5  Partech, which is the contracted government,

          6  government contracted entity that has conducted the

          7  GIS mapping for the state, has done a pilot program

          8  in Walton, New York where they did map out all the

          9  outfalls, and it's been very successfully done in

         10  that pilot program and we think that should be done

         11  East of Hudson as well.

         12                 And one of the other things is the

         13  construction runoff. A lot has been said today about

         14  controlling construction, and we really just want to

         15  reiterate the need to have the post construction

         16  runoff equal to the -- not increase any sediment

         17  loads whatsoever. It's very important in the East of

         18  Hudson to not add to water degradation.

         19                 For pollution prevention, good

         20  housekeeping, again, it's a matter of training, it's

         21  a matter of training and staff.

         22                 One of the things we're going to call

         23  for is training of construction operators, we think

         24  that should be extended to training of all

         25  construction personnel.
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          2                 One of the things in our comments is

          3  a simple thing such as where the personnel who are

          4  on the construction site, how they conduct

          5  themselves, how they, you know, they're the first

          6  line of defense at this construction site and can

          7  play a role, a key role, in keeping stormwater out

          8  of the waterways.

          9                 So, I really urge that be one of the

         10  provisions.

         11                 On the construction permit, enough

         12  can't be said on the need to incorporate protection

         13  of natural resources. That was certainly something

         14  that we advocated for in the Statewide construction

         15  permit, and while we're glad to see that the

         16  seven-day inspection is back, and that the phase-in

         17  five acres is back, the point that there is no

         18  protection of wetlands, that there's still no

         19  protection of streams and that there is no mention

         20  of siting on steep slopes, is a cause for concern

         21  statewide, but in particular in the East of Hudson.

         22                 And to that end, I just want to

         23  reiterate what was said earlier, the need to have

         24  protection of those natural resources in any East of

         25  Hudson's permit.
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          2                 And I've delineated some of the needs

          3  in my written comments. I won't go through them

          4  now.

          5                 And I know I'm going to give my

          6  colleague a chance to comment as well, but we again

          7  want to thank you for taking the opportunity for

          8  having this hearing. It's an important stormwater

          9  program statewide and particularly important in the

         10  East of Hudson venture.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         12  you, Ms. Breen. I appreciate your being here. And

         13  we'll question you once we hear from Mr. Yaggi. I

         14  might as well embarrass you on the record here or

         15  whatever, and just -- when are you getting married,

         16  Marc? When is that?

         17                 MR. YAGGI: A couple of days.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: A couple of

         19  days. The wedding is Saturday, right?

         20                 Why don't we all go and congratulate

         21  Marc on his upcoming wedding. Many, many decades of

         22  happiness. Many decades of happiness.

         23                 MR. YAGGI: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: God bless. God

         25  bless.
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          2                 With that said. With that said, I met

          3  the young woman, too. So, it's nothing to worry

          4  about here. They both chose wisely. They both chose

          5  wisely.

          6                 MR. YAGGI: Now I'm all flustered, how

          7  am I supposed to testify?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you for

          9  indulging us.

         10                 MR. YAGGI: Can I withdraw my oath,

         11  because I have no idea what I'm going to say.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. So,

         13  congratulations and please proceed with your

         14  testimony, if you're able to.

         15                 MR. YAGGI: Thank you. My name is Marc

         16  Yaggi, and I'm senior Watershed Attorney for

         17  Riverkeeper, which is a non-profit organization

         18  dedicated to protecting the Hudson River, its

         19  tributaries and the New York City watershed. We're

         20  also a signatory to the 1997 New York City watershed

         21  agreement.

         22                 First I want to thank the Council for

         23  its leadership on water quality issues over several

         24  years. The Council has been a critical advocate for

         25  the health and welfare of 9 million New Yorkers, and
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          2  we fully support your resolution today.

          3                 At the same time, I'd like to also

          4  acknowledge DEC's leadership on water quality issues

          5  by designating the East of Hudson watershed as an

          6  MS4 by contracting with Center for Watershed

          7  Protection to develop a permit program and assess

          8  the current problems in the watershed, and also by

          9  making some important improvements and

         10  clarifications to the Statewide permit, as has been

         11  mentioned several times today, that the drop permits

         12  were a bit deficient and I think that the public

         13  made its voice known, heard, that they felt

         14  stormwater was an important issue and that these

         15  changes needed to be made, and I think that also

         16  some of it was just a matter of clarification. I

         17  don't believe that the draft was drafted very well,

         18  and a lot of things needed to be cleared up.

         19                 I'm just going to run over a few

         20  things briefly, most of what I had planned to say

         21  was said already, and I've submitted some more

         22  extensive written testimony. I'm also working on

         23  more extensive written comments to send to DEC as

         24  well.

         25                 I believe that stormwater is the
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          2  greatest threat to water quality in the New York

          3  City watershed, and with every single inch of

          4  pavement we add to East of Hudson Watershed, we're

          5  adding the threat of sending more motor oil, engine

          6  coolant, brake lining rush, new translitter, animal

          7  waste, sand salt and other dangerous pollutants and

          8  contaminants into our drinking water supply. It is a

          9  true public health threat.

         10                 In fact, it's estimated that 84

         11  percent of the phosphorous which is in the

         12  reservoirs, and phosphorous being the principle

         13  pollutant of concern in the watershed, 84 percent of

         14  that comes from non-point sources, such as

         15  stormwater sources.

         16                 In fact, it's a national issue,

         17  because EPA estimates that stormwater is the primary

         18  reason why 40 percent of our nation's waterways

         19  cannot support such uses as fishing and swimming.

         20                 It's quite a shame after 30 years the

         21  Clean Water Act has been enacted and 40 percent of

         22  our streams and waters can't support such uses as

         23  fishing and swimming.

         24                 So, what can be done about

         25  stormwater? Well, we know we can get some better
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          2  permits, some enhanced, strengthened permits from

          3  the East of Hudson watershed for construction

          4  activities and for municipal stormwater activities.

          5                 Regarding construction, it's widely

          6  known that poor construction practices can

          7  significantly impact our waterways by destroying

          8  wetlands and sending tons of pollution into the

          9  waterways.

         10                 I don't have the figures for New

         11  York, but we recently did some research and found

         12  that North Carolina estimates that every acre of

         13  exposed soil in the state discharges about 100 to

         14  200 tons of sediment every year into its waterways,

         15  and as sprawl continues to devour open space in the

         16  East of Hudson watershed, the threat of these

         17  construction activities only magnifies.

         18                 One of the things that we do at

         19  Riverkeeper, is on occasion we'll send out some of

         20  our representatives to go look at it and investigate

         21  construction sites in the watershed.

         22                 And I would say that on majority of

         23  occasion we find improperly installed erosion and

         24  sediment control sites, inadequate erosion sediment

         25  controls or water quality violations, and/or water
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          2  quality violations.

          3                 Along with this testimony I've

          4  submitted some color photographs. These are

          5  representative of the damage of construction to a

          6  waterway and this is construction of one home and it

          7  takes place in the town of Southeast in the East

          8  Branch Reservoir Basin.

          9                 The pictures that you're looking at

         10  depict basically stormwater sediment rushing off of

         11  a construction site, essentially destroying a pond

         12  and destroying a stream that flows out of the pond.

         13                 And the pond and the stream are

         14  tributaries to the East Branch River and they've

         15  both been turned mud brown by sediment from the

         16  Upland Construction Project.

         17                 In addition to that, that was the

         18  site that we went to visit in December, but as you

         19  can see, photos from June showed the site the same

         20  way it was in December. Little changed. This has

         21  been an ongoing problem.

         22                 One of the sites we visited before we

         23  went to that one in December was in Yorktown and

         24  similar issues. A lot of the stormwater that was

         25  supposed to be going into a detention bond to be
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          2  treated before it is released into a tributary of

          3  the Croton Reservoir was bypassing it and going

          4  straight down the side of the hill to the stream.

          5                 I will note in that one, though,

          6  we're very fortunate that both DEC and DEP responded

          7  quickly to our concerns and remedial activities are

          8  underway on that project.

          9                 The point of these permits, though,

         10  is we shouldn't have these happening in the first

         11  place. Both of these sites should never have had

         12  problems.

         13                 I'm going to go through just a couple

         14  elements I think should be in the construction

         15  permit, in a strengthened construction permit for

         16  the East of Hudson. Most of what I'm saying somewhat

         17  mirrors or parrots what you've heard before. Once

         18  you've spent a little bit of time researching

         19  stormwater, it becomes abundantly clear what the

         20  answers are and what needs to be done.

         21                 Some of our preliminary issues for

         22  the East of Hudson, as far as construction are that

         23  the permits should contain, heightened pollutant

         24  removal criteria.

         25                 They should protect natural
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          2  resources. We should be prohibiting activities on

          3  steep slopes. We should be prohibiting anything in

          4  wetland buffers. We should limit construction on

          5  clay soils and there should be greater protection

          6  for streams.

          7                 In addition, we should be requiring a

          8  certain set of basic stormwater controls for

          9  projects smaller than one acre, which can be seen

         10  right there. That's one house, and how much

         11  devastation that costs to the pond and stream.

         12                 Going on to the specifics of what

         13  should be done with municipal activities, I'm just

         14  going to briefly run over these to. I think that the

         15  MS4 permit conditions should be specifically focused

         16  on reducing phosphorus. There need to be, DEC should

         17  be defining what are the measurable goals that the

         18  MS4 should be trying to achieve and give examples of

         19  the goals, they need to be objective, and

         20  enforceable.

         21                 There should be a lot of guidance in

         22  the permit or in guidance documents because it's a

         23  fairly complex regulatory scheme.

         24                 The permits should require

         25  remediation of existing stormwater problems in the
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          2  watershed, and there needs to be a strong commitment

          3  to enforcement. And also, I think we need to spend a

          4  lot of time looking at how we can aid these

          5  communities with innovative funding solutions, like

          6  stormwater utilities and other funding sources.

          7                 Last, I'd like to say that phase II,

          8  the phase II program can be good economic policy. In

          9  the watershed, what I would like to see as a goal of

         10  the permits, would be to encourage growth around

         11  watershed community centers so that we can

         12  revitalize main streets, preserve open space,

         13  benefit locally-owned businesses and all at the same

         14  time reducing the amount of pavement levels.

         15                 These kinds of programs that go along

         16  with phase II have been proven economically

         17  beneficial throughout the country.

         18                 We're doing a research now on a

         19  number of programs that have been done across the

         20  country that have been cost effective, more

         21  economically beneficial, and I want to close there

         22  and just thank you for the opportunity to testify.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         24  you very much, both of you, for your good testimony.

         25                 I just had a couple of questions that
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          2  came to mind, I'll just throw them out to either one

          3  of you or both to speak to.

          4                 With regard to protection for sites

          5  that are, you know, less than one acre, Mark Hoffer

          6  of DEP made some reference to that, and I'm

          7  wondering how much of -- to what extent do we see

          8  the less than one-acre sites, do you see those as

          9  sort of a battleground?

         10                 I know that you gave that specific

         11  attention, I know the EP jumped on that as well, so

         12  I'm kind of getting the sense that sites less than

         13  one acre are of concern to everybody here; is that

         14  fair to say?

         15                 MR. YAGGI: Yes, I think so. I think

         16  when you factor in the consideration as to how much

         17  sediment can come off of even a one-acre site, a

         18  significant amount is going to come off the smaller

         19  than one-acre site.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, because

         21  even the permits as written really only for like,

         22  are only like for one acre and above, right?

         23                 MR. YAGGI: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: One acre and

         25  above, so I guess what's the exposure of less than
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          2  one acre, and we would take that into account with

          3  heightened stormwater protection that we could build

          4  into any kind of special permit of East of Hudson;

          5  is that doable?

          6                 MR. YAGGI: Yes. I think they could

          7  set forth a number of basic stormwater controls that

          8  are not financially burdensome.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And the State

         10  would not be precluded from doing this because it's

         11  actually less than one acre, and the permit

         12  authority extends only from one acre and above; is

         13  there any kind of regulatory legal --

         14                 MR. YAGGI: EPA's regulations allow

         15  for it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, so they do.

         17                 MS. BREEN: They have a right to

         18  designate enough watershed protection, and although

         19  I didn't orally say this today, in my comments, as

         20  well, call upon the extension to less than one acre.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, I see.

         22                 With regard to EPA, has EPA been --

         23  you know, there hasn't been that much discussion of

         24  EPA today, other than that they, you know, it's EPA

         25  and federal actions that ultimately gave rise to the
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          2  Phase I and Phase II and all that, to what extent,

          3  and I don't want you to speak for them, but to what

          4  extent is your sense that Jeff Gratz and the

          5  Watershed team over at EPA have been, you know,

          6  engaged on this issue with respect to DEC and Phase

          7  I and Phase II and the current discussion that we're

          8  having today, are they like on the radar on this, or

          9  have they reached out to, were they sort of like

         10  among the entities that were reaching out to DEC, a

         11  little tweak on this? Or are they sort of watching?

         12                 Again, I'm putting you in a weird

         13  space in asking you to speak for them, but what's

         14  your sense of EPA's involvement on these Phase II

         15  permits, if any, based on your anecdotal information

         16  and understanding that what you say is just based on

         17  your own, what you've heard anecdotally, and not the

         18  ultimate because DEP is not here to speak to that.

         19                 MS. BREEN: I mentioned earlier there

         20  was already a meeting of watershed stakeholders to

         21  discuss East of Hudson Watershed permits. EPA was in

         22  attendance at that meeting.

         23                 As for whether or not they have

         24  provided, or to the extent they've provided guidance

         25  to DEC and DEP or any of the municipalities, you

                                                            87

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  should ask them.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

          4                 MS. BREEN: But they were

          5  participating in the East of Hudson watershed permit

          6  discussions.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, I was

          8  curious for your views on EPA's actions, if any, on

          9  this.

         10                 And it appears that there's like a

         11  fair amount of common ground between positions of

         12  the environmental advocates, and DEP. I mean, we're

         13  talking like lots of overlap here, right? That's a

         14  fair assessment?

         15                 MS. BREEN: One of the things that we

         16  did when we talked about earlier being a very

         17  coordinated effort, not just with this office but

         18  also with other environmental organizations, and

         19  DEP, one of the first things we did was the New York

         20  State Attorney General's Office, Attorney Watershed

         21  Inspector General, was to meet with Commissioner

         22  Ward to discuss the need for the certainly strong

         23  stormwater permits, and in particular, East of

         24  Hudson strong permits.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, and I guess
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          2  most of the points that you all made in your

          3  comments to DEC, and very similar things coming from

          4  DEP, I guess maybe you folks went a little further

          5  in certain things but there is lots of overlap here

          6  and I think that's a helpful sign that we're all

          7  sort of looking for the same thing.

          8                 MS. BREEN: It's also apparent how we

          9  all agree that there needs to be improvements, and

         10  especially East of Hudson.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, I think it

         12  reflects the fact that stormwater is the biggest

         13  water quality issue we face, and the answers are

         14  clear.

         15                 I'm liking that.

         16                 Well, we made reference before to

         17  West of Hudson and that the Statewide permit was

         18  going to -- in effect everybody, including West of

         19  Hudson will focus now on East of Hudson, the special

         20  carve-out and special issues there, you know, for

         21  heightened stormwater protections, but that leaves

         22  on the table the prospect of West of Hudson and

         23  whether or not the statewide construction permit

         24  would be sufficiently protective of activities West

         25  of Hudson.
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          2                 I know you, like Mark Hoffer and

          3  everyone else, haven't had a chance to fully

          4  assimilate all of the things that are in the

          5  Statewide permit, but is that something you're going

          6  to be focusing on, whether the statewide

          7  construction permit would be sufficiently protective

          8  of the West of Hudson watershed, and whether or not

          9  that are deserved its own little special nudge with

         10  regard to heightened stormwater protection? Who

         11  wants that one?

         12                 MR. YAGGI: I've taken some time to

         13  look at the permits and I think the real

         14  battleground is East of Hudson, until there might be

         15  some more sprawl West of Hudson I think that they

         16  will be protective at this point.

         17                 In addition, the West of Hudson has a

         18  fund for stormwater controls and a lot of other

         19  programs that are doing a very good job at reining

         20  in pollution.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Good, good.

         22  Cathleen, anything on it?

         23                 MS. BREEN: I just agree. I mean, East

         24  of Hudson, because of the development pressure,

         25  requires our attention now, and it's where we really
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          2  focus our energy.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. Terrific.

          4  Terrific.

          5                 Oh, Council Member Koppell has a

          6  question.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Mr. Yaggi, I

          8  note in your statement, you have the following

          9  sentence: "... otherwise a unfiltered drinking water

         10  supply for 9 million New Yorkers will be in jeopard,

         11  and the result, New York City could be required to

         12  construct and operate a prohibitively expensive

         13  filtration plant, a plant that the City cannot

         14  afford, a plant that cannot guarantee clean drinking

         15  water."

         16                 Now, is that the plant that is

         17  currently being planned for or the EIS is being

         18  prepared for, for the East of Hudson water, is that

         19  what you're referring to?

         20                 MR. YAGGI: Well, it specifically in

         21  that sentence is referring to the Catskill/Delaware,

         22  the potential for a Catskill/Delaware plant, because

         23  all of the Catskill Delaware water flows through the

         24  East of Hudson watershed, and that if it were

         25  allowed to degrade once the East of Hudson
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          2  watershed, the City would be forced to build a

          3  filtration plant.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But I'm a

          5  little confused here. The filtration plant, we're

          6  talking about the East of Hudson now, right?

          7                 MR. YAGGI: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: So, how does

          9  that relate to the stormwater pollution in the East

         10  of Hudson, that's what you say in the prior

         11  sentence.

         12                 Take strong measures to address

         13  stormwater pollution in the East of Hudson

         14  watershed, otherwise an unfiltered drinking water

         15  would be in jeopardy, and as a result New York City

         16  could be required to construct and operate a

         17  prohibitively expensive filtration plant.

         18                 You're saying you're referring there

         19  to the West of Hudson filtration plant?

         20                 MR. YAGGI: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: How does that

         22  relate to stormwater protection in the East of

         23  Hudson?

         24                 MR. YAGGI: Because all of the water

         25  that comes from West of Hudson flows through the
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          2  East of Hudson watershed, therefore, if stormwater

          3  were to degrade that water supply, it would require

          4  filtration of the West of Hudson water.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But the West

          6  of Hudson water is not going to flow through the

          7  filtration plant, is it?

          8                 MR. YAGGI: No, it would flow through

          9  its own filtration plant.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Let's assume

         11  it isn't built. I don't understand that that water

         12  is going to go to the filtration plant. You're sort

         13  of suggesting that all the water come through the

         14  East of Hudson.

         15                 MR. YAGGI: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I'm not sure

         17  that's correct. I think there's a separate supply.

         18                 MR. YAGGI: The water from the

         19  Delaware watershed goes across the Hudson River into

         20  the West Branch Reservoir, which is part of the East

         21  of Hudson Watershed, and then it goes to the Kensico

         22  Reservoir.

         23                 Water from the Catskill watershed

         24  flows under the Hudson River and into the Kensico

         25  Reservoir.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But the

          3  filtration plant that the City is planning to build

          4  is not going to filter the West of Hudson, is it?

          5                 MR. YAGGI: No. No.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: How are they

          7  going to separate that, if you say they flow

          8  together?

          9                 MR. YAGGI: Well, the water that would

         10  be treated by a Croton filtration plant would treat

         11  water that comes out of the Croton reservoir

         12  specifically. The filtration plant that may have to

         13  be built for the Catskill/Delaware system, would

         14  treat the water coming out of the West Branch

         15  Reservoir and the Kensico Reservoir, both of which

         16  are located --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But isn't the

         18  water that we're talking about here, and maybe I'm

         19  mistaken, but the East of Hudson Water Supply that

         20  we're talking about protecting here, isn't that the

         21  one that goes into the Croton Reservoir?

         22                 MR. YAGGI: They're both intermingled

         23  in a sense. The water from the West of Hudson comes

         24  East of Hudson. There's a distinction between the

         25  Croton watershed and the East of Hudson Watershed.
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          2                 The East of Hudson Watershed is

          3  bigger than the Croton watershed. It includes the

          4  West of Hudson Reservoir of the West Branch and the

          5  Kensico and the Boyds Corner.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I see. That

          7  portion you're talking about then?

          8                 MR. YAGGI: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But not the

         10  other portion that goes into the Croton Reservoir.

         11                 MR. YAGGI: I think it's also

         12  critically important for the Croton watershed as

         13  well, that we have these heightened permits, and it

         14  could in fact help avoid filtration.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Does the

         16  Riverkeeper have a position on the filtration of the

         17  Croton water?

         18                 MR. YAGGI: I think that we've made it

         19  known to the City that we believe it would be

         20  prudent to review alternatives. We submitted

         21  comments on the scoping for the Croton Filtration

         22  Plant, and that it would be use to consider various

         23  alternatives to filtration.

         24                 I believe the strengthened stormwater

         25  permits, phase II permits, would go a long way at
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          2  cleaning water in the Croton Watershed, and it also

          3  should be known that a lot of the sediment, like in

          4  that picture that you saw there, that turbidity

          5  actually impairs the ability of a filtration plant

          6  to work, so it would be very important that we stop

          7  sediment from getting in the streams.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: You don't

          9  have a position either for or against the filtration

         10  plant that's now mandated by the federal EPA?

         11                 MR. YAGGI: I think we're reviewing

         12  our options, but we believe that watershed

         13  protection should always be first and foremost and

         14  that we should be looking at alternatives.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, I think

         16  given the fact that soon the draft environmental

         17  impact statements are coming out, it would be useful

         18  to have your point of view. I would appreciate it.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         20  Thanks very much for your great advocacy on behalf

         21  of watershed and your being on the front lines in

         22  the battle against stormwater, and, so, we certainly

         23  want to work together with you and with DEP to get

         24  the best and heightened stormwater control that we

         25  possibly can, not only for East of Hudson, but
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          2  everywhere in the City's watersheds and everywhere

          3  in the state, so thanks for helping lead the way and

          4  we appreciate it very much. And congratulations,

          5  Mark. Congratulations. Okay.

          6                 We have Mr. Jeff Baker from the

          7  Coalition of Watershed Towns, to be followed by Dr.

          8  Paul Mankiewicz, from the Gaia Institute.

          9                 Mr. Baker, thanks for coming. Thanks

         10  for being with us here today. I appreciate you

         11  coming down from Upstate to give us the benefit of

         12  your good views, and the Counsel to the Committee,

         13  Donna DeCostanzo, will do the oath, and I'll ask you

         14  to state your name for the record and proceed with

         15  your testimony.

         16                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: In the testimony that

         17  you're about to give, do you swear to tell the

         18  truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         19                 MR. BAKER: I do.

         20                 MR. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you. Thank

         22  you, Mr. Baker. I think it is the first time you've

         23  appeared before the Committee in its new membership,

         24  and I appreciate the opportunity to come down here

         25  and give us the benefit of your views.
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          2                 Do you have a prepared statement?

          3  I've got it right here. Thanks very much. Let me

          4  just ask you to state your name for the record and

          5  proceed with your testimony.

          6                 MR. BAKER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          7  My name is Jeff Baker. I am Counsel to the Coalition

          8  of Watershed Towns, and the Coalition greatly

          9  appreciates the opportunity to come down and testify

         10  today and we greatly appreciate the continued

         11  efforts of this Committee to include and invite the

         12  Coalition to express its views on your continuing

         13  hearings regarding the oversight of the watershed.

         14  That didn't always happen in the past, and we

         15  appreciate the efforts that are being made to do

         16  that, and it exemplifies the spirit of partnership

         17  that the Upstate communities are committed to as

         18  embodied in the watershed Memorandum of Agreement.

         19                 I'll be very brief on my comments,

         20  and normally my role when I come and speak to these

         21  things is to, you know, throw cold water on a love

         22  fest that may be generating among everyone. I have

         23  little to criticize but I'll come up --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We've got a

         25  marriage taking place here. We've got everything.
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          2                 MR. BAKER: If Mr. Yaggi was marrying

          3  somebody from DEP, then you would have a love fest.

          4                 Obviously, the Coalition of Watershed

          5  Towns is an intermunicipal organization comprised of

          6  more than 50 towns and villages which is exclusively

          7  in the West of Hudson watershed.

          8                 The concerns expressed today by

          9  yourself, by the other people testifying today, have

         10  focused primarily on the East of Hudson issues, and

         11  we take no position on those issues. We respect the

         12  Home Rule rights of our other municipalities, but

         13  are also encouraged that the responsible and

         14  moderate attitude being taken by people regarding

         15  what's being done in the West of Hudson watershed

         16  and the recognition that there are no dire

         17  circumstances in the West of Hudson, and nothing

         18  that requires any heightened level of regulation.

         19  And to the extent that the draft resolution asking

         20  for heightened restrictions to the construction

         21  permit, the general permit of statewide, we would

         22  oppose that and urge you not to do that as it

         23  applies to the West of Hudson, because it just isn't

         24  necessary.

         25                 I think something important to know,

                                                            99

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  and I'm sure you're aware of it, and it's been

          3  touched on everywhere else is, the problems and the

          4  very real problems that have been experienced

          5  statewide and nationwide, with the general permits

          6  in the Phase I program for stormwater control,

          7  largely derived from the fact that it was

          8  essentially a volunteer program. It did not require

          9  prior permit review, and permit issuance, and it was

         10  largely an honor system. You have to abide by the

         11  requirements.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That was Phase

         13  I.

         14                 MR. BAKER: And it is Phase II.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Phase II, okay.

         16                 MR. BAKER: For statewide

         17  applications.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         19                 MR. BAKER: In most instances it does

         20  not require an individual permit where you have to

         21  go and get the permission of the specific regulatory

         22  body, before you can go forward on it.

         23                 And in fact, and it was -- followed

         24  Phase I in particularly, obviously, Phase II is not

         25  in effect yet, it was followed more in the breach
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          2  than in practice, even on large projects they were

          3  not generally followed.

          4                 Since 1997, however --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You said

          6  something about a breach? Hang on.

          7                 MR. BAKER: Well, the rules were

          8  adhered to more as an exception than the rule. It

          9  was because there was lax enforcement, there was lax

         10  review, statewide and nationally, on many of the

         11  issues on the Phase I stormwater plan, and the goal

         12  of with the federal law moving to a Phase II was

         13  ratcheting it down and having a more stringent

         14  control, because stormwater certainly is the largest

         15  uncontrolled source of water pollution in the

         16  country.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Now, when you

         18  say ratchet down, you mean in terms of acres

         19  covered, right?

         20                 MR. BAKER: Lowering the thresholds,

         21  which triggers the permit requirements.

         22                 However, since 1997, with the

         23  adoptions of New York City's watershed rules, the

         24  universe changed as it applies to the New York City

         25  watershed, and suddenly you have not only the
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          2  general permit requiring an individual permit review

          3  but the thresholds were reduced, and no longer did

          4  you have the case where projects were not following

          5  the general permit requirements, at least speaking

          6  from a West of Hudson perspective, I won't speak

          7  from an East of Hudson perspective, DEP has been

          8  very stringent in their applications of those

          9  regulations, and very stringent in their application

         10  and enforcing to make sure that the plans are

         11  followed, and in many cases as viewed from a West of

         12  Hudson perspective too stringent.

         13                 So, I think if the New York City

         14  model, if the watershed model was the main avenue

         15  for going forward on stormwater pollution

         16  prevention, there wouldn't even be a need for a

         17  Phase II, because you already have the individual

         18  permit control. Obviously, it's a federal

         19  requirement and the Phase II comes in regardless,

         20  and we will deal with those as it applies West of

         21  Hudson, but it is important for us, we're concerned

         22  going forward, how is DEP's existing regulatory

         23  program going to be adopted or amended to take into

         24  account the new Phase II standards, when a lot of

         25  their regulatory program is related towards a Phase
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          2  I or a heightened Phase I.

          3                 And we want to make sure that nobody

          4  is stuck in any kind of a regulatory purgatory, or

          5  trying to answer two masters, two different

          6  standards to apply. And I think it was Ms. Breen and

          7  Mr. Yaggi who pointed it out, and I know Mark Hopper

          8  noted it too, is the City has made substantial

          9  investment West of Hudson, both in a stormwater

         10  retrofit program which deals with existing problems,

         11  and a fund for the future stormwater controls.

         12                 We are very interested in making sure

         13  that those funds, which may be contractually limited

         14  because of the adoption of Phase II, those

         15  contractual limitations are removed and that those

         16  funds are available to help fund the important

         17  stormwater control measures on projects going

         18  forward, and the Coalition was heartened when

         19  Commissioner Ward spoke to the Coalition a couple of

         20  months ago, and demonstrated his support for those

         21  kind of efforts, and I know the City has been

         22  waiting for the final version of the construction

         23  general permit and is going to start the process of

         24  analyzing an integration with their existing

         25  regulatory program, what changes are necessary, and
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          2  we're willing to work with them on those efforts.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, if I can

          4  just make sure that I got it right, the promulgation

          5  of the Phase II stormwater regulations is

          6  necessarily going to create a need to tweak the

          7  watershed regulations because they have to be

          8  consistent, because now the watershed regulations

          9  are consistent with Phase I, and they have to be

         10  made consistent with Phase II. And, so, there has to

         11  be some kind of.

         12                 MR. BAKER: There should be some

         13  accommodation, whether it requires an amendment of

         14  existing city's regulations is not necessarily the

         15  case, but it is certainly one means of dealing with

         16  the issue.

         17                 There can be some coordination

         18  measures that avoid that, but there certainly has to

         19  be some accommodation.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: They have to be

         21  made consistent with them at a minimum.

         22                 MR. BAKER: Right.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And one of your

         24  concerns in that drive for consistency, that they've

         25  been made consistent in some reasonable way, and
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          2  that the funding streams for some of the programs

          3  are kept in or what --

          4                 MR. BAKER: I mean, the funding

          5  commitments are there already under the original

          6  MOA, and some of them are renewed and augmented

          7  under the most recent FAD.

          8                 We're not asking for any additional

          9  funds.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         11                 MR. BAKER: It just is, again,

         12  amending the contract which govern those so that it

         13  is clear that those, again, continue to be available

         14  to help pay for those stormwater control measures

         15  that have to be put in front.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. Right.

         17                 And those concerns on funding streams

         18  and all are sort of outlined in your statement here?

         19                 MR. BAKER: They're summarized at the

         20  end. As I identified that's something that we're

         21  concerned to make sure that funding is made

         22  available.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We'd like to ask

         24  this of you, if we could.

         25                 To the extent that you feel a need to
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          2  reach out to me personally or this Committee, to let

          3  me know about funding problems or issues or anything

          4  that concerns the Coalition of Watershed Towns and

          5  the perspective on the issues, we'd be happy to

          6  listen and try to be of help as we try to listen to

          7  DEP and the advocates to see if we can make some way

          8  on this East of Hudson stormwater control. We want

          9  to sort of be a resource for stakeholders, and, you

         10  know, we can write letters and make phone calls and

         11  make sure that the issues that we all face with

         12  regard to proper watershed protection are dealt with

         13  appropriately, and I'd like to think of this

         14  Committee as a resource that people can go to and

         15  have their views heard. And I'd be happy to talk

         16  with you at any time and make sure that, you've

         17  always done a pretty good job on speaking out on

         18  behalf of the Coalition for Watershed Towns, if

         19  there are issues with which we can be helpful with

         20  DEP, you know, you come to me, if it makes sense to

         21  me I'd be happy to advocate for it. If it doesn't, I

         22  won't.

         23                 So, I'm grateful for your testimony

         24  before us today, and in the spirit of cooperation

         25  with which you come before us, and there's a lot of

                                                            106

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  coom-by-aah going on today, which is a good thing.

          3                 MR. BAKER: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, please keep

          5  your relationship going, and I thank you for your

          6  interest on behalf of balancing everything that we

          7  have to balance. We could all live together, drink

          8  water, we should all be happy, grow old, have kids,

          9  you know what I mean? And go forward from there.

         10                 Jeff, thanks very much for coming

         11  before us today.

         12                 MR. BAKER: Thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You bet.

         14                 Dr. Paul Mankiewicz of the Gaia

         15  Institute.

         16                 Hi, Paul.

         17                 Thanks for coming before us today.

         18  We'll ask you to submit to the ritual, if you could

         19  state your name for the record and proceed with your

         20  testimony.

         21                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

         22  right hand.

         23                 In the testimony that you're about to

         24  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         25  whole truth and nothing but the truth?
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          2                 DR. MANKIEWICZ: I do.

          3                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

          5  much, Dr. Mankiewicz, for coming before us today. As

          6  everyone knows, Dr. Mankiewicz is half of the

          7  high-powered team of Paul and Julie Mankiewicz and

          8  both champions on behalf of the environment, and the

          9  Julie teaches where I teach at Queens college, so I

         10  always want to give her special recognition, as

         11  well. Another great environmental marriage, okay?

         12                 So, Paul, thanks for being with us

         13  here today. Please state your name for the record,

         14  and proceed with your testimony.

         15                 DR. MANKIEWICZ: Thank you. I'm Dr.

         16  Paul Mankiewicz. I am the Executive Director of the

         17  Gaia Institute, also a Bronx representative on the

         18  New York City Soil and Water Conservation District,

         19  and I give my testimony on the part of the Gaia

         20  Institute today.

         21                 First to say, I'm exceedingly in

         22  favor of the stormwater regulation changes, because

         23  they have made a substantial step forward, but I

         24  have to point out a couple of --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You mean the
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          2  changes have been made since the draft by DEC, and

          3  the ones embodied in the January 8th version?

          4                 DR. MANKIEWICZ: That's right. And

          5  Phase II, compared to Phase I, is a step forward in

          6  itself, but then the changes have been substantial.

          7                 There's two independent problems,

          8  though, with the Phase II regulations as presently

          9  stated, and if they're not addressed, the

         10  regulations cannot protect environmental water

         11  quality of the State of New York.

         12                 As stated in the regulations, they

         13  have no performance criteria in terms of actual

         14  water captured per area under construction or area

         15  developed, either retrofits or for new construction.

         16                 At a minimum, each construction site

         17  should be able to hold or capture some place between

         18  50,000 and 100,000 gallons of water, so that's a

         19  half an inch and a half or three inches of water,

         20  and the concept is very simple and you're going to

         21  get large storms, and to keep catastrophic flows

         22  from occurring, as Riverkeeper was pointing out

         23  earlier, will happen over acres of landscape. You

         24  need to basically have capacity to catch it before

         25  you start building.
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          2                 The same kind of criteria, water

          3  catchment area, is needed to evaluate Upland

          4  properties in the watershed, from roadway

          5  infrastructure to commercial and residential

          6  developments.

          7                 We need performance criteria for all

          8  of these things. You can drive along the roadways,

          9  the parking lots and see erosion rills (phonetic)

         10  going right down into receding waters. There's

         11  nothing in Phase II that will reverse that, and

         12  because of that they will impede themselves,

         13  so-to-speak, for improving water quality all

         14  together.

         15                 It can readily be demonstrated that

         16  the bufferlands DEP owns are of no way significant

         17  scale to capture all the uphill water. You've got to

         18  basically catch the water where it falls near the

         19  properties of the townships, and it's just going to

         20  have to be a state and township kind of partnership

         21  to actually solve the problem.

         22                 The only workable solution if to

         23  utilize the Phase II context to ensure that

         24  rainwater is held remains near where it falls and

         25  infiltrates into soils and plants upgradient from
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          2  receiving waters. And one of the pieces I handed to

          3  the Counsel to look at is basically how to do this

          4  kind of retrofit, increase the infiltration and the

          5  ecosystem surfaces, the capacity of soils and

          6  landscapes to capture and filter water.

          7                 And without that, on the one hand

          8  there is no value-added to those watershed towns,

          9  which are basically guaranteed to be almost

         10  biospheres preserved in perpetuity, if they do

         11  maintain their greenness; on the other hand, our

         12  water quality will suffer.

         13                 What we're suggesting here, that

         14  virtually all precipitation should be captured and

         15  moved into groundwater, providing the best of all

         16  scenarios to citizens of this City, as well as the

         17  Croton watershed, in terms of two major measurable

         18  performance criteria.

         19                 The first is zero discharge. The

         20  measure of any property on the watershed, any

         21  construction site is no runoff, the best being no

         22  runoff. And that also addresses and solves another

         23  problem, which is maximal recharge and storage of

         24  rainwater, the more you have stored, goals basically

         25  for Upstate and City residents, because the
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          2  scientific hydrological issues are relatively

          3  simple, when water doesn't run out it provides

          4  recharge, and since many of the houses in Dutchess

          5  and Putnam and Westchester and Northern Westchester

          6  actually on wells, that's a resource for them as

          7  well.

          8                 Apparently zero discharge is more of

          9  a description of natural systems than actually as

         10  some kind of theoretical imposition, most natural

         11  watershed probably have virtually no runoff, except

         12  for spring runoff, when the snowmelt occurs.

         13                 So, all we're asking the watershed

         14  township to do, and especially the Phase II

         15  regulations, is to essentially approximate the same

         16  kind of situation that has been described by Paul

         17  Heisig in his work, on the sub-basins of New York

         18  City's Croton, where he found that 80 percent of the

         19  water in relatively undeveloped watersheds went into

         20  groundwater directly, and the 20 percent that didn't

         21  is basically from spring runoff again.

         22                 So, that water could also be

         23  captured, and catastrophic flows can be avoided in

         24  relatively simple ways.

         25                 I'll mention one now. Let me just
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          2  read a little bit further. The critical issues

          3  remain not so much in what is supposed to not be

          4  done, or what isn't done, but what is.

          5                 For example, in terms of construction

          6  sites, on part of a lunch break, a supervisor could

          7  sculpt the catchment or hollows downhill from the

          8  next thrust of construction or clearing. In other

          9  words, with a very small amount of time with a

         10  backhoe or front-end loader, you could create an

         11  area where all of the water that could come off of a

         12  site you're going to work on to be captured.

         13                 The same thing could be done with

         14  ditch-witchers and front-end loaders and the like,

         15  essentially as in the sustainable agriculture where

         16  contour ploughing is a long-term practice, basically

         17  if you look at any site and you have direct conduits

         18  going into the receiving waters, it's going to fail,

         19  and unfortunately to date, the Phase II regulations

         20  aren't addressing this issue.

         21                 So, the measure of any construction

         22  site, measure of any development, the measure of all

         23  the infrastructure in the watershed is very simply

         24  does it hold water? And when it doesn't, it has to

         25  actually capture something like three inches over
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          2  the total area to make a difference in terms of the

          3  potentially catastrophic flows into our receiving

          4  water, which will also keep the working capital of

          5  the landscape, the matter of the soils, on the land

          6  where they do the work for us.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, the capacity

          8  of the receiving, you know, catchment area or

          9  whatever, should be three inches over the site. You

         10  know, whatever volume of water that works out to?

         11                 DR. MANKIEWICZ: That's right.

         12  Something like a Hurricane Floyd, which is 12 inches

         13  of rainfall in 24 hours, most of the water in even

         14  that environment would be captured because you would

         15  get infiltration in the areas where you capture

         16  water, and as long as there's contours and there's

         17  some allowance to make sure you don't have

         18  catastrophic failure where something can just break

         19  through a dam and run all the way down a hill.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         21                 DR. MANKIEWICZ: So EPA's concept of

         22  multi-barrier is very worthwhile here, but we also

         23  have to have a volume. We have to have a number. We

         24  need to make sure that a major storm comes on and

         25  acutely drops a huge amount of rainfall doesn't
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          2  cause a great deal of damage.

          3                 The studies that Marc Yaggi mentioned

          4  before from the Carolinas, they talked about 100 to

          5  200 tons of runoff per acre per year, most of that

          6  runoff comes during the springtime when the ground

          7  thaws out, and the water comes off very, very

          8  quickly.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, the concept

         10  is very simple, and it's a straightforward

         11  engineering kind of approach.

         12                 DR. MANKIEWICZ: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Is that going to

         14  be a volume-based thing?

         15                 DR. MANKIEWICZ: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So, rather than

         17  just simply describing the mechanics of the

         18  management practice, or you say, okay, that this

         19  management practice has to have enough volume to

         20  contain what can potentially come off of it, which

         21  seems basic, right?

         22                 DR. MANKIEWICZ: Yes. It's not there

         23  but it's basic. And the City Council could do a

         24  great service by actually addressing this issue in

         25  the East of Hudson.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's us. We

          3  could do that. We could do that.

          4                 And is it something which is captured

          5  in people's -- you'd have knowledge of what people

          6  are advocated or whatever, is this new or other

          7  people are advocating for this as well?

          8                 DR. MANKIEWICZ: Well, people are

          9  doing things down this road, but in terms of an

         10  actual number, the Swim Model (phonetic) is a bunch

         11  of approximations of this, but in terms of a very

         12  simple number that a construction manager could

         13  understand, that people don't have, are not really

         14  working with that. This kind of estimation is a

         15  somewhat more conservative way to go than a Swim

         16  Model and a standard model, so it would incorporate

         17  those kinds of approaches as well.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, I think

         19  what I want to do is, just speaking on the record

         20  here, but speaking aloud, I want to be able to maybe

         21  take one of the resolutions and amend it to include

         22  a lot of the good things we heard today and, you

         23  know, after we analyze all the testimony, come

         24  forward with a resolution for pushing through these

         25  heightened stormwater controls that really takes
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          2  into account, you know, the good things that

          3  yourself and DEP and Riverkeeper and NYPIRG and the

          4  other people that we're going to hear about today,

          5  we're going to put forward a package, and to the

          6  extent we can have people stand behind that and help

          7  us push it, I think we can get a better outcome than

          8  we currently have from DEC.

          9                 With that said, I thank you for the

         10  important value added that you brought to the

         11  discussion today, and please give my best to Julie

         12  and all the good people at Gaia.

         13                 Is that a good baby name, you think,

         14  for continuing on this beam? I'm carrying this too

         15  far.

         16                 Okay, Paul, thanks very much.

         17                 David, could I just see you for a

         18  second? David Ferguson?

         19                 Okay, the next panel, David Ferguson

         20  and Fay Muir, to be followed by Frank Eadie, of the

         21  Seirra Club. I'm just going to pardon myself just

         22  for one moment.

         23                 (Recess taken.)

         24                 Thank you for your patience, and your

         25  diligence of a long history on this issue.
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          2                 Donna will give the oath and ask you

          3  to each identify yourself for the record and proceed

          4  with your testimony.

          5                 We'll do ladies first again, okay,

          6  David?

          7                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Please raise your

          8  right hand. In the testimony that you're about to

          9  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         10  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         11                 MR. FERGUSON: I do.

         12                 MS. MUIR: I do.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         14                 Please state your name for the record

         15  and proceed with your testimony.

         16                 MS. MUIR: My name is Fay Muir. I'm

         17  with the Croton Watershed Clean Water Coalition, and

         18  I'm going to be pretty much emphasizing the Croton

         19  Watershed, because even though there's three regions

         20  that we get our water, it's still one water system,

         21  and that can be especially true in the times of

         22  drought, as we've just had recently, when the Croton

         23  was asked, called upon to supply, 30 percent is what

         24  is generally quoted as being supplied during

         25  droughts, but I think during this time they had to
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          2  call upon it for even more than that.

          3                 So, it is one water supply system,

          4  and I'm going to focus on comments for the

          5  watershed, since even though people have been

          6  talking about East of Hudson, it has not really been

          7  focused on the Croton, but on the part that is the

          8  Cat/Del.

          9                 So, on the Croton Watershed, at least

         10  85 percent of their source pollution originates from

         11  stormwater runoff, and the runoff from construction

         12  sites is of the greatest concern because in that

         13  area there is a lot of emphasis on urbanization and

         14  those runoff may contain chemicals and solvents and

         15  asphalts, acids, pesticides, petroleum products and

         16  sediment.

         17                 The stricter controls under the Phase

         18  II stormwater regulation is particularly important

         19  because in the East of Hudson Watershed there are

         20  400 miles of streams and an abundance of wetlands.

         21                 Seventy percent of wetlands, even

         22  though the East of Hudson is only six percent of the

         23  acreage of the entire watershed. And, of course, the

         24  reason for this is because the glacier that scoured

         25  out the basins and gave it that abundance of
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          2  wetlands, whereas on the west side of the Hudson you

          3  have steep slopes and the water runs right off so

          4  there's no catchment during the times of drought.

          5                 And the wetlands or the marsh

          6  ecosystems are on streams and larger waterways,

          7  plays an important role in both flood control and

          8  pollution control and provide a habitat for many

          9  small mammals, amphibians, habitats for migrating

         10  birds, and without legal protection, many of these

         11  areas could be filled in and phased over, and

         12  designation of MS4 to all the wetlands east of the

         13  Hudson is a welcome protection of these prized

         14  habitats.

         15                 Environmental research in the last 25

         16  years showed that wetlands and marshes filter water

         17  flowing into streams and water tables, trapping

         18  sediments and contaminants.

         19                 They absorb water from heavy rains,

         20  reducing flooding by soil and streams. They

         21  accumulate nutrients such as nitrogen and phosphorus

         22  preventing them from running into reservoirs where

         23  they can cause algae blooms, which was mentioned

         24  before, and algae blooms trigger the color and odor

         25  problems, which are of concern, as well as form
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          2  disinfection byproducts, when water is dosed with

          3  chlorine.

          4                 The proposed new rules by the Bush

          5  Administration could cut federal protection from

          6  nearly all of the streams in the Croton watershed

          7  because of their small size.

          8                 Almost every development project in

          9  the Croton Watershed has wetland or wetland buffer

         10  disturbances. There is a cumulative negative impact

         11  from disturbing all of those areas. Therefore,

         12  having a uniformed regulator presence by the MS4

         13  designation will put developers on notice that

         14  precautions must be taken on the highest level to

         15  limit stormwater runoff.

         16                 Also, the proper permitting and

         17  stormwater pollution prevention plans will likely be

         18  completed and in place before the site is disturbed

         19  for any project.

         20                 So we support any and all efforts by

         21  the DEP to implement these regulations. The added

         22  extra protections granted East of Hudson waterbodies

         23  by their designation as critical resources. There is

         24  every reason to believe that the Croton water supply

         25  system will continue to deliver high quality water
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          2  far into the future.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you very

          5  much.

          6                 We'll wait until David gives his

          7  testimony and then we'll speak with you both.

          8                 Go ahead, David.

          9                 MR. FERGUSON: Okay. My name is David

         10  Ferguson, and I am a Board member of the Croton

         11  Watershed Clean Water Coalition, and also of the

         12  HDFC Coalition tenant-sponsored housing group.

         13                 And I appreciate this opportunity

         14  that the City Council has provided to discuss this

         15  really essential issue, which the public in general

         16  is not aware of. I wasn't many years ago until I got

         17  involved with this. I could drive by these

         18  reservoirs with some innocence and not realize how

         19  much damage was being done by stormwater, so this is

         20  really an important thing to do and I appreciate all

         21  the work that Jim Tierney and that you have done and

         22  Donna and Jim, and even DEP sounded some really good

         23  position there. I hope that these things will come

         24  to pass, and that there's enough money to implement

         25  the kind of enforcement and the kind of one-week,
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          2  that's a great thing to have more often, to look at

          3  these sites and to really -- it would be interesting

          4  to have some kind of a record of how many visits are

          5  made.

          6                 I know that in the Croton in general,

          7  the people up there that are fighting these

          8  developments that are unwise and water quality

          9  damaging want DEP up there to come and testify.

         10                 DEP's attitude up til now has been

         11  that the people in the watershed don't care about

         12  protecting the water and it's quite wrong. A you may

         13  have realized, we had a Board meeting, Fay and I

         14  were up there with Carl Schwartz, the three of us

         15  and an 11-member board from New York City, all the

         16  rest are from Putnam and Westchester, fighting every

         17  day to protect that water supply, and very concerned

         18  about stormwater, as is John Keane.

         19                 Now, John Keane, I don't know if you

         20  invited him. He once came down here and sat here all

         21  day. He has a very thriving marine insurance

         22  business that he really has to take care of, he

         23  spent the whole day here and wasn't called for so

         24  long he had to leave and somebody else did stand in

         25  for him, but he has -- I don't know if you're
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          2  familiar with his report, it's quite thick, two

          3  books. About this thick (indicating). Are you

          4  familiar?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No.

          6                 MR. FERGUSON: Well, we'll get you a

          7  copy.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Please.

          9                 MR. FERGUSON: This book -- you are,

         10  Jim?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: No. Any

         12  information you think would be helpful to us.

         13                 MR. FERGUSON: It's about, they

         14  isolated, along with CWCWC and Trout Unlimited

         15  cooperated in a huge project, isolated 20 stormwater

         16  insults to the water supply, of which 50 were

         17  itemized in this book, with a background, the whole

         18  thing, and each site had many photographs, showing

         19  the environmental consequences, discussing the

         20  environmental, legal, whether it was a town or a

         21  state road, showing 50 foot gouges where this silt

         22  had been washed into it and recommending

         23  remediation.

         24                 These 50 sites could be taken care of

         25  for about a few million dollars, maybe half the

                                                            124

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  interest on the money that we gave to Westchester to

          3  do just this kind of thing, and they have done

          4  nothing in five years. And with the 68 million that

          5  DEP mentioned, and 38 went to Westchester and 30 to

          6  Putnam, and Putnam is actually now using that money

          7  because they have been saving it for diversion, and

          8  they didn't get the diversion in Putnam, so now

          9  they're actually using it to help buy property,

         10  going in on Tilly Foster Farms (phonetic) and

         11  various other water -- they're ahead of Westchester,

         12  and that's an amazing fact. And Westchester still

         13  hasn't done one thing. To implement the directive in

         14  the MOA, which said very specifically two of the

         15  three, the first two items were to find and indicate

         16  the stormwater and collect a list of stormwater

         17  problems, and then to solve them.

         18                 Now, here's a citizen at his own

         19  expense, as we all work, you know, if we could

         20  double our pay and we'd still have nothing, this

         21  citizen goes out and does this work, and CBS

         22  actually went up there and did an article in the

         23  news that was so exciting to them even, and yet, he

         24  has tried with the Governor, with the DEP, with

         25  everybody, he is so frustrated in trying to get this
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          2  work done, that would give us a real benefit, would

          3  improve an already good water, though troubled

          4  water, without other measures needing to be taken.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Well, we would

          6  love to meet with them.

          7                 MR. FERGUSON: I will definitely

          8  follow up on this.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         10                 MR. FERGUSON: Because this is one of

         11  the best things that could happen, and years go by,

         12  and in his report he mentions the State 20 years ago

         13  did a study and came up with the finding 20 years

         14  ago that stormwater was a problem, and 20 years

         15  later they haven't done anything.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Let's focus on

         17  right now. It seems that the MOA, as you indicated,

         18  called upon Westchester to do some tests regarding

         19  stormwater which they haven't done.

         20                 MR. FERGUSON: It wasn't specifically

         21  directed to stormwater. They get a benefit, for

         22  example, they're considering using $4 million of

         23  this toward the cost of diverting sewage from

         24  Yorktown to Peekskill which is an environmental

         25  justice issue among other things, and it's something
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          2  that we don't support.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          4                 MR. FERGUSON: That's one reason they

          5  haven't spent it because they're saving it for these

          6  diversions, which would create more development and

          7  more stormwater, because in the MOA, with the

          8  diversion, you get a ten percent credit for more

          9  development.

         10                 Now, there are people that say, well,

         11  if it's affordable housing and schools, but, you

         12  know, educated runoff is runoff.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         14                 MR. FERGUSON: So, these are issues

         15  that are very --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Please work with

         17  us to get this information from this man. What is

         18  his name again?

         19                 MR. FERGUSON: John Keane.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: John Keane?

         21                 MR. FERGUSON: Yes, he's from Trout

         22  Unlimited.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         24                 MR. FERGUSON: And he's worked with

         25  Riverkeeper, he's very familiar with this project.
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          2  It just boggles my mind.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm sold. Just

          4  get him together with us and see if we can --

          5                 MR. FERGUSON: And the sites that he

          6  shows us, just horrendous.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Got it. Got it.

          8  Got it. Okay.

          9                 MR. FERGUSON: Also, another thing is

         10  the towns up there, you know, they don't have the

         11  resources to implement a lot of this MS4 stuff, and

         12  they need technical help and they need resources to

         13  help address some of these problems. I don't know if

         14  that's included in any of this. I haven't had a

         15  chance to really review the new laws.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I don't know,

         17  but certainly anything put forward without the

         18  resources to make it happen is going to be --

         19                 MR. FERGUSON: Also, I just like to

         20  say, much has been said about the impervious

         21  service, and we all agree on that. Not only it stops

         22  the recharge, it knocks out vegetation that helps

         23  hold the soil and absorb pollutants and shade

         24  streams, and it also supplies these trenches and it

         25  changes the configuration of the area so that it
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          2  delivers water with force, so it has a multiple bad

          3  effect, and I don't think, you know, it's not just a

          4  little impervious surface that's a problem there,

          5  and the BMPs, you know, BMPs are something that give

          6  us a lot of trouble. I mean, retention, detention

          7  basins, all these things, in the water quality

          8  community there are a lot of engineers that are not

          9  too crazy about these things.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Better to have

         11  them than not have them, no?

         12                 MR. FERGUSON: Well, yes. I mean

         13  they're certainly useful, no question about it.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         15                 MR. FERGUSON: But they should be used

         16  as an excuse to occasion otherwise unwise

         17  development.

         18                 And also, there's not much technical

         19  information on exactly how much pollutant it takes

         20  care of. It takes care of maybe suspended solids and

         21  stuff like that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's why they

         23  call it best management practices and not perfect

         24  management practices, but, you know --

         25                 MR. FERGUSON: Well, I think sometimes
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          2  there's an overconfidence. BMPs, you know, that's

          3  whatever.

          4                 And also, let's see where I was, I

          5  think I actually covered most of the issues here.

          6                 I have, there's a list here, we have

          7  a report that was made, dated before the 18th to

          8  support the changes, and some of these, one of the

          9  things that CWCWC has really pushed for is that the

         10  SBBPs should be integral, an integral component of

         11  the DEIS. They shouldn't be something afterwards

         12  that, you know, you adjust -- you know, you buy your

         13  clothes and you wear yourself into them or

         14  something. It should be, it's a critical thing

         15  that's too late to do anything, obviously,

         16  afterwards, and they're critical.

         17                 And there are a number of other

         18  issues that I don't know have been covered in the

         19  new iteration of the regs, but we believe that there

         20  should be a limit on impervious surface, ten percent

         21  is what in general the environmental community

         22  that's interested in these issues, the over ten

         23  percent you begin to see damage in wetlands and so

         24  forth, so the minimum, and that would be a way of

         25  regulating a lot of these things, if you added up
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          2  the amount of impervious surface for some subbasin

          3  and you wouldn't go over a certain amount. If you

          4  were going over --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Do we have that,

          6  is anything like that in place?

          7                 MR. FERGUSON: No, there's been

          8  discussion in journals about it. There's no --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: There's nothing

         10  in that in Phase II or anything?

         11                 MR. FERGUSON: Not that I have

         12  studied. Marc certainly studied it, and I don't know

         13  that there has. I know it's an issue because it's a

         14  way of quantifying and making what is otherwise

         15  rather a difficult thing to arrive at a little more

         16  manageable, but that's the debate that's going on.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         18                 MR. FERGUSON: We believe that it

         19  could be a very useful tool.

         20                 And lastly, I'd just like to say that

         21  I hope by and by we can have a hearing on the

         22  Croton, because it does have the development

         23  pressures. There are many issues involved, not the

         24  least of which is one that we're very concerned

         25  about, an alternative to filtration --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          3                 MR. FERGUSON: As Council Member

          4  Koppell brought up, we can do that.

          5                 Because the EPA's multi-barrier

          6  system approach, which they always say filter and

          7  protect the watershed --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          9                 MR. FERGUSON: Is no question in our

         10  minds that filtration -- just the prospect of

         11  filtration has affected the priorities that are

         12  placed on land purchase, the TMDL allocations for

         13  the Croton as opposed to the --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

         15                 MR. FERGUSON: And you can go on many

         16  lists. Filtration takes away funds, a billion-four

         17  at a time like this, and we've got to fund all this

         18  kind of enforcement and all the rest of this and

         19  remediation, it's going to take the heart right out

         20  of that.

         21                 So, there is every reason to go for

         22  something that might cost 100 million, rather than a

         23  billion-four, and do the same job and meet EPA

         24  standards.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.
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          2                 MR. FERGUSON: So, I think that's

          3  worth discussing before the plant -- the contract

          4  has just been let to Malcolm Perny for $63,400,000

          5  to begin design and, you know, doing the work to

          6  prepare for this filtration plant. We don't have

          7  much time.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          9                 MR. FERGUSON: They're going to

         10  officially choose the site in a couple of months.

         11  So, if it was a bad idea, or there is an idea that

         12  is better --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         14                 MR. FERGUSON: It would be better for

         15  the City Council perhaps to review that before and

         16  not after the thing is inevitable.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Of course. Duly

         18  noted.

         19                 MR. FERGUSON: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I had a question

         21  for you. Do you have a written statement, David?

         22                 MR. FERGUSON: I don't have my own. I

         23  have our Croton Watershed Clean Water Coalition

         24  statement.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: With regard, and
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          2  this will be a general request of both of you, to

          3  the extent that you have specific requests or

          4  concerns that you would like to see included in the

          5  official New York City Council command,

          6  Environmental Protection communique or report or

          7  statement or whatever it is that we openly do with

          8  regard to making a request of the DEC for stronger

          9  stormwater controls East of Hudson, and anything

         10  else that we've spoken about today, please get that

         11  to --

         12                 MR. FERGUSON: Yes, our statement here

         13  was addressed to the DEC on the -- and this is a

         14  list of -- you can discount the ones that we

         15  actually got.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. And to the

         17  extent that we could get that or anything else that

         18  may come to mind.

         19                 MR. FERGUSON: And we'll get you the

         20  John Keane report.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Please. That's

         22  what I was going to say. That's what it was. If we

         23  can get that and set up with my staff and myself,

         24  and the staff of the Committee would like to explore

         25  that, and, as always, I want you both to feel you're
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          2  very much apart of what we do here. We can't do

          3  anything without you folks, right? We have to hear

          4  from you. So, we thank you so much.

          5                 MR. FERGUSON: We kind of need you

          6  too.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I try to do my

          8  job.

          9                 So, thank you for your great advocacy

         10  and for your presence here today and for your

         11  patience, and if you would get the copy of the

         12  summary to Donna DeCostanzo.

         13                 MR. FERGUSON: Will do.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And the report

         15  from Mr. Keane.

         16                 Keane, right?

         17                 MR. FERGUSON: Right.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Keane. We would

         19  really appreciate that.

         20                 MR. FERGUSON: Will do.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thanks very

         22  much. Appreciate it. Appreciate it.

         23                 And our last witness, the honorable

         24  Frank Eadie, from the Seirra Club.

         25                 Mr. Eadie, thanks so much for coming
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          2  in today. You've been here many, many times. You

          3  know, when I think of emotional passion on behalf of

          4  the watershed, your picture comes to mind.

          5                 So, thank you very much for staying

          6  in the game, and all these years, and we appreciate

          7  it.

          8                 We're still going to swear you in

          9  thought, but we appreciate it just the same.

         10                 Donna, if you could.

         11                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Could you raise your

         12  right hand?

         13                 In the testimony that you're about to

         14  give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the

         15  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         16                 MR. EADIE: I sure do.

         17                 MS. DeCOSTANZO: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         19  Frank. Please state your name for the record and

         20  proceed with your testimony.

         21                 MR. EADIE: My name is R. Frank Eadie,

         22  and I'm here representing the Sierra Club, and

         23  specifically the New York City Watershed Campaign of

         24  the Sierra Club, which is actually a subsidiary, or

         25  project of the Atlantic Chapter which covers New

                                                            136

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  York State.

          3                 And I want to start by thanking and

          4  congratulating the Committee and yourself personally

          5  for having an impeccable sense of timing, maybe even

          6  too good, that you manage to have a hearing four

          7  days after the state's issuing of its permit,

          8  regarding the state's Phase II regulatory --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We'd like to

         10  think we probably have something to do with that. In

         11  light of a phone call with Erin Crotty (phonetic) a

         12  couple of days before the thing got released, I told

         13  her about these resolutions we were doing, and I

         14  faxed them to her office, and I think with the

         15  symphony of comments that they were getting from

         16  people in high and low places, or whatever, I think

         17  they just kind of came around, and that's a good

         18  thing, and I congratulate them for that, but we've

         19  still got more work to do, and thanks for you

         20  acknowledgment of what happened, but we were by no

         21  means the main driver, it was a collaborative thing

         22  and that's how we're going to proceed from here.

         23                 MR. EADIE: I think the club agreed

         24  fully with what you said. It represents a major,

         25  major change. Since I've been working on it for ten
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          2  years now, it's just about ten years, it means a lot

          3  to me.

          4                 You know, it's literally something is

          5  happening at the State, the City, and the City

          6  Council level. And in the watershed, too, I think,

          7  it's sort of percolating in the watershed. There's a

          8  long way to go up there, but a number of important

          9  things have happened, and it does, I think,

         10  represent an appropriate response to a situation

         11  that had gotten very close to being totally out of

         12  hand, and it still is in many respects.

         13                 There are something like 14 major,

         14  major development projects slated for the areas, the

         15  watersheds of the Middle Branch diverting and East

         16  Branch Reservoirs up there, which provide probably a

         17  third of the water for the Croton system, and most

         18  of the water for the Croton falls reservoir, which

         19  has been and apparently formally is going to be used

         20  as a source of water for to be put into the Delaware

         21  Aqueduct on a basis, on any conditions where the

         22  City has to use Croton water to supplement the

         23  Cat/Del, as it has for the last couple of years.

         24                 And so that particular segment of the

         25  watershed is very important in terms of, because it
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          2  won't be -- we're talking about water that will not

          3  be filtered, even by a filter plant, through Croton,

          4  it will go into the Delaware Aqueduct, therefore it

          5  will remain not filtered, unless it forces the City

          6  to actually build a filtration plant for the

          7  Cat/Del.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And this is the

          9  new Croton Reservoir you said?

         10                 MR. EADIE: No, this is the Croton

         11  Falls Reservoir.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, Croton

         13  Falls. Croton Falls, okay.

         14                 MR. EADIE: The Delaware Aqueduct goes

         15  right under, almost under that reservoir, and

         16  there's a connection at that, an existing connection

         17  to the Delaware Aqueduct from the Croton Falls

         18  Reservoir.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And that's been

         20  tapped a lot in this time of drought?

         21                 MR. EADIE: Yes.

         22                 And it's scheduled that and the Cross

         23  River, both have connections?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Pardon?

         25                 MR. EADIE: The Cross River Reservoir
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          2  as well has a connection directly to the Delaware

          3  Aqueduct, and both of those are mentioned in the

          4  FAD, for example, and they get special treatment.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          6                 MR. EADIE: But they don't, the FAD

          7  doesn't deal with the fact that much of the water

          8  going into the -- of the Croton Falls' water comes

          9  from the East Branch and the Middle Branch and the

         10  diverting reservoirs, whereas sort of all around

         11  that.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         13                 MR. EADIE: And that whole area is

         14  currently focused for an incredible level of

         15  development.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And arguably

         17  it's almost like an arm of the Cat/Del system.

         18                 MR. EADIE: I mean, it functions that

         19  way, certainly in times of drought, which is when

         20  you're most susceptible to having bad water, because

         21  then you're scraping the bottom of the barrel

         22  everywhere.

         23                 So, that's, in fact, the worst, comes

         24  when water is going to be the worst, and it's just

         25  then that you have to bring in this and depend on
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          2  that supply.

          3                 So, if we let that go, as from the

          4  sense we have been, we're in deep trouble.

          5                 So, again, and I want to thank you

          6  very much for having this hearing, calling it and

          7  dealing with the Croton system.

          8                 It's great that the State, in fact,

          9  has heard the call from us down here and from the

         10  residents up there, and has actually offered to do a

         11  special permit for the Croton, and you're holding

         12  this hearing at the time -- you didn't give us much

         13  time to prepare, but it's great that you're doing

         14  it, and that they're considering it, and obviously

         15  this hearing may lead to additional communications

         16  and work on the possibility of permitting.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Just like I

         18  reached out to the State a week and a half ago and

         19  sent them copies of the resolution, said that this

         20  is a priority for us, and we were joining with

         21  others, to make sure that this issue got the hearing

         22  that it deserved and we got a good outcome, and

         23  we're not done. I'm just getting warmed up.

         24                 MR. EADIE: And DEP's testimony was

         25  very encouraging, that the new Commissioner and new
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          2  Mayor have made a substantial significant difference

          3  in terms of the City's willingness to make

          4  commitments and to sort of really focus on these

          5  issues.

          6                 It's very encouraging.

          7                 Now, getting to what we would like to

          8  have, and what we would like to see in this new

          9  permit, I think the number one issue that strikes

         10  me, and probably us in general that's critical is

         11  the construction permit and the level of the size of

         12  the project that has to get a permit.

         13                 Again, it's currently set at one acre

         14  in the Phase II regs statewide, what we feel makes

         15  much more sense for the Cat/Del is a permit for 1.1

         16  acre, okay? Less than 0.1 acre, you can do things

         17  like a small house, a garage, you know, a barn,

         18  whatever, but to give you a sense, it's my guess,

         19  and I haven't actually gone out and measured it, and

         20  don't have plans, but I suspect City Hall probably

         21  covers a bit less than 0.2 acres, in that area.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You mean the

         23  footprint of the building?

         24                 MR. EADIE: The footprint of the

         25  building.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: An acre is what,

          3  43,000 square feet or something?

          4                 MR. EADIE: That's right.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And a tenth of

          6  an acre is --

          7                 MR. EADIE: Forty-three, 4,400 square

          8  feet, that's a large lot, that's quite a large lot.

          9  I mean, that's probably more than half the size of

         10  City Hall here.

         11                 Okay, so small projects, you might

         12  define it, but you've still got an awful lot of

         13  runoff, off of a site that size.

         14                 So, 0.1 acre, the feds actually

         15  considered dealing with regulations of less than 0.1

         16  acre.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         18                 MR. EADIE: Or not dealing with them,

         19  you know, dealing with everything above 0.1 acre,

         20  and that probably is the size that would make sense

         21  in terms of having a significant impact on the water

         22  supplies and so forth.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Because 0.1 acre

         24  would be like you said, it would be 4,300 square

         25  feet.
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          2                 MR. EADIE: That's right. That's still

          3  quite a lot. You could build a nice sized house on

          4  that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

          6                 MR. EADIE: You can do certainly

          7  garages or barns, whatever.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes.

          9                 MR. EADIE: But anything larger than

         10  that, you really do risk having significant impacts,

         11  and, you know, I think the developers up in Putnam

         12  and so forth, need to be put on notice that any time

         13  they're going to do a significant project, they've

         14  got to get a permit.

         15                 Basically we're past the point where

         16  we can say ten acres. I mean, ten acres is a very

         17  large area.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, ten acres

         19  is huge. Yes.

         20                 MR. EADIE: And you're talking a

         21  couple, what was it Mark said, a couple hundred

         22  acres, a couple of hundred tons per year comes off

         23  of an acre.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         25                 MR. EADIE: We're talking that's a
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          2  huge amount of stuff, that will wipe out a small

          3  stream, it's just creating a new bank or a new

          4  stream, et cetera, et cetera, and it will create a

          5  huge amount of pollution going into a reservoir.

          6                 So, that would be our recommendation.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: 0.1.

          8                 MR. EADIE: 0.1.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: All right.

         10                 MR. EADIE: Other areas that we want

         11  to see focused on involves the stormwater management

         12  plans. They suggest that they -- and as they have

         13  been, an agreement has already been made in a sense

         14  in the MOA, that both Westchester and Putnam

         15  Counties will come up with sort of unified watershed

         16  protection plans, okay? Which suggests that they

         17  will have stormwater management plans that apply, at

         18  least watershed-wide, if not county-wide.

         19                 We think that that's probably a

         20  pretty good idea, that all developers up there all

         21  have the same rules to operate under, no matter

         22  where their project is, DEP can, DEC and DEP have

         23  the same standards, you know, to enforce and to

         24  operate under, they don't have to pull out the play

         25  book and examine the exact lines of the projects to
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          2  determine whether maybe you can have different

          3  criteria on the one side of the lot than on the

          4  other side of the lot.

          5                 So, we think that makes a lot of

          6  sense, that we get -- and that is basically

          7  presumably what we're doing with the City's money in

          8  setting up their watershed plans, which we have yet

          9  to see. And they're past due on those.

         10                 So, we think that having a permit

         11  that says this is the regs for this area, as

         12  determined by the counties makes a lot of sense and

         13  sort of we're all playing in the same boat.

         14                 Another recommendation, I want to

         15  strongly reinforce what Cathleen said earlier, and

         16  Mark, about prevention being a far better method of

         17  --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Mark is still

         19  here.

         20                 Go ahead.

         21                 MR. EADIE: Prevention is what we're

         22  after. Structural solutions, catchment basins,

         23  retention basins, these things work to a limited

         24  degree, but they get overwhelmed, they get heavy

         25  rainstorms, they're basically questionable in terms
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          2  of their effectiveness, because in a sense you're

          3  trading off a basin for wetlands for soil that could

          4  process the water and retention routine water and so

          5  forth.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, it's

          7  certainly not as good as not doing anything, but

          8  people are going to be doing as-of-right development

          9  and that's just reality.

         10                 MR. EADIE: Right.

         11                 So, what I'm saying is the permit

         12  needs to reinforce the significance of, one, not

         13  putting impervious surface down; two, providing

         14  means of non-structural solutions to pollution

         15  preventing as much coverage as possible.

         16                 Prevention as many sources, avoiding

         17  sources of pollution to each extent possible.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We would like to

         19  see something about pesticides in there, for

         20  example, pesticide use in these areas, in the MS4s,

         21  we'd like to see even limits perhaps on fertilizer.

         22                 These kinds of things that need to be

         23  thought about and worked out, standards need to be

         24  in place.

         25                 In addition, particularly I want to
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          2  emphasize the importance of dealing with road salt.

          3  It's a big issue. Both sets of water quality data

          4  over the last few years have shown an increase in

          5  sodium and chloride levels in the reservoirs, in

          6  both sets of waters. And that's almost certainly due

          7  to increased levels of salt use.

          8                 And that needs, better methods need

          9  to be worked out for handling snow and road and

         10  driveways and so forth. Those need to be

         11  incorporated into a permit, especially given that we

         12  all have to drink that water.

         13                 Number five, performance criteria. I

         14  wanted to reinforce what Paul said earlier, about

         15  how critical that is. That's where the rubber meets

         16  the road. And it's percentages --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, we got

         18  that. We're good with that. I'm totally sold on

         19  that.

         20                 MR. EADIE: Very good.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I'm doing that.

         22                 MR. EADIE: Okay.

         23                 Six, enforcement. We need to, no

         24  matter what the regs say, and no matter what the

         25  permit says, if you don't have the enforcement, it
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          2  doesn't work, I mean you might as well forget it.

          3                 So, I think what we need to do is to

          4  try to get DEC and the Inspector General to the

          5  living active forces in the watersheds, both of

          6  them.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Is that really

          8  the case? Or is it just your DEP folks running

          9  around doing that?

         10                 MR. EADIE: They certainly have a role

         11  and they have to enforce it, but since they don't

         12  have the ability to enforce state regulations, they

         13  can issue slips, notices, and say, you know, you're

         14  not doing such and such.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, yes.

         16                 MR. EADIE: They can call in DEC. But

         17  they can't, you know, locality can't enforce our

         18  state regs and these are state permits.

         19                 So, we need to have a DEC presence

         20  there. I love it, I had one case, a demolition

         21  project, and they were dealing with asbestos. They

         22  were pulling it out. I mean, no special clothing, no

         23  protections, anything, called up DEC, a guy came up

         24  in a uniform with a Smoky Bear hat, whoa, it all

         25  stopped. You know, it was amazing how fast this
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          2  process stopped. That kind of thing makes a big

          3  difference.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          5                 MR. EADIE: If you have these guys

          6  there in their uniforms, and saying, you know, hey,

          7  you can't do this.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          9  Particularly if they're big.

         10                 MR. EADIE: Especially if they're big,

         11  right.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That helps, too.

         13                 MR. EADIE: So, and the Inspector

         14  General is wonderful, if we can get sort of

         15  coordinated enforcement going on, I think it's going

         16  to make a big difference, because it will force

         17  people, the developers and the polluters to get

         18  educated.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

         20                 MR. EADIE: Which fortunately is a

         21  major role in this phase II standards, is the

         22  Education programs, and we want to see that those do

         23  happen and that there be funding available, so that

         24  may be something again where the City is going to

         25  play a role in helping to fund education programs up
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          2  there.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We would be

          4  great for like a written copy of the statement so we

          5  can make sure we get all of the --

          6                 MR. EADIE: I will.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, all of

          8  these recommendations, because we want to have a

          9  process by which we compile all of the

         10  recommendations that we think are worthwhile to

         11  bring to DEC, and certainly want to make sure that

         12  yours are included.

         13                 Do you have more? Do you have more,

         14  Frank?

         15                 MR. EADIE: One or two points.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

         17                 MR. EADIE: Again, the importance of

         18  the education, endorse what's there. I think it's

         19  even better. A third point in this respect is the

         20  importance of citizen involvement, and there are

         21  some requirements for it in the permit, as issued,

         22  but we'd like to see an additional set go forward,

         23  which there are actually citizen advisory committees

         24  involved at the local level, both there in the

         25  watershed and also involving the City people and the
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          2  environmentalists.

          3                 There was DEP for a couple of years

          4  had a CAC specifically devoted to the Croton.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          6                 MR. EADIE: We think that worked very

          7  well.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: They don't have

          9  that now?

         10                 MR. EADIE: Neely (phonetic) abolished

         11  it actually not two three years ago.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Put it on the

         13  list.

         14                 MR. EADIE: I think that's an

         15  excellent idea.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Put it on the

         17  list, that way we can, you know --

         18                 MR. EADIE: It doesn't go into the

         19  permit probably, but it --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I understand.

         21  I'm going to ask for whatever I want to ask for,

         22  what are they going to tell me?

         23                 MR. EADIE: We actually asked for it

         24  recently --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We'll have a
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          2  supplemental list.

          3                 MR. EADIE:-- And they turned us down.

          4                 If you could ask, that would help.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure.

          6                 MR. EADIE: Okay.

          7                 And, finally, we want to put in a big

          8  plug for trying to get a research component,

          9  research facilitated under the permit, that is that

         10  perhaps things like rules regarding the level of

         11  slope that you can build on might get stretched a

         12  little bit, if the project is participating in a

         13  research project that studies the impacts of slopes

         14  on the level of pollution and contamination and

         15  relationship between the size of stormwater and the

         16  amount and that sort of thing.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Spell that out

         18  in your statement that you get to us and we'll kick

         19  that around, see if it's something that we want to,

         20  that we really want to do.

         21                 MR. EADIE: Okay.

         22                 Again, this whole business of

         23  watershed, or water management on the landscapes and

         24  things is very new science.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Yes, absolutely.
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          2                 MR. EADIE: And the Croton I think

          3  could have a major role in trying to work out what

          4  is sustainable.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          6                 MR. EADIE: What really works under

          7  what conditions, and that's really important world

          8  wide, not to mention to us who have to drink the

          9  water.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Absolutely.

         11                 MR. EADIE: Thank you very much for

         12  your time.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you so

         14  much for your wonderful recommendations, make sure

         15  that Donna DeCostanzo gets them, and we'll, you

         16  know, put them in the mix.

         17                 We're still going to continue to

         18  advocate for the watershed with DEC, and

         19  notwithstanding the strides we have made of late, as

         20  I've said a couple of times, we still have a lot

         21  more to do and we're going to keep going with these

         22  major asks.

         23                 We have a little bit of a momentum

         24  here, but no one should rest on any laurels until we

         25  go a lot further. I think we've put some balls in
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          2  the air today that could really help, and we've got

          3  Jeff Baker on board for gosh sakes, and, wow, talk

          4  about having the planets in alignment, that's pretty

          5  good.

          6                 That's pretty good. So, Frank, thanks

          7  very much. I appreciate your patience and your

          8  advocacy on this issue, and most importantly your

          9  passion. We really appreciate it.

         10                 Don't lose faith, we'll get it done.

         11                 Thanks. Thanks, everybody.

         12                 Anyone else wish to be heard?

         13                 Hearing none, the hearing is

         14  adjourned. Thanks.

         15                 (Hearing concluded at 4:10 p.m.)
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